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PART I
FINANCIAL INFORMATION
ITEM 1. Financial Statements
TELADOC HEALTH, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(In thousands, except share and per share data, unaudited)
September 30,
2020

Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Short-term investments
Accounts receivable, net of allowance of $4,661 and $3,787, respectively
Inventories
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Total current assets
Property and equipment, net
Goodwill
Intangible assets, net
Operating lease - right-of-use assets
Other assets
Total assets
Liabilities and stockholders’ equity
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities
Accrued compensation
Deferred revenue-current
Advances from financing companies
Total current liabilities
Other liabilities
Operating lease liabilities, net of current portion
Deferred revenue, net of current portion
Advances from financing companies, net of current portion
Deferred taxes
Convertible senior notes, net
Commitments and contingencies
Stockholders’ equity:
Common stock, $0.001 par value; 150,000,000 shares authorized as of September 30,
2020 and December 31, 2019; 84,358,345 shares and 72,761,941 shares issued and
outstanding as of September 30, 2020 and December 31, 2019, respectively
Additional paid-in capital
Accumulated deficit
Accumulated other comprehensive loss
Total stockholders’ equity
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity

$

$

1,187,299
3,070
85,803
11,578
22,293
1,310,043
20,364
1,691,355
386,573
33,933
7,117
3,449,385

$

21,408
65,130
53,957
46,721
13,609
200,825
1,033
30,326
4,884
9,901
17,896
953,484

$

$

$

84
2,835,274
(598,694)
(5,628)
2,231,036
3,449,385

See accompanying notes to unaudited consolidated financial statements.
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December 31,
2019

$

$

514,353
2,711
56,948
0
13,990
588,002
10,296
746,079
225,453
26,452
6,545
1,602,827

9,075
34,439
34,201
12,466
0
90,181
9,239
24,994
2,300
0
21,678
440,410

73
1,538,716
(507,525)
(17,239)
1,014,025
1,602,827
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TELADOC HEALTH, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(In thousands, except share and per share data, unaudited)
Quarter Ended September 30,
2020
2019

Revenue
Expenses:
Cost of revenue (exclusive of depreciation and
amortization shown separately below)
Operating expenses:
Advertising and marketing
Sales
Technology and development
Legal and regulatory
Acquisition and integration related costs
General and administrative
Depreciation and amortization
Total expenses
Loss from operations
Loss on extinguishment of debt
Interest expense, net
Net loss before taxes
Income tax (benefit) expense
Net loss

$

Net loss per share, basic and diluted
Weighted-average shares used to compute basic and
diluted net loss per share

288,812

$

137,969

Nine Months Ended September 30,
2020
2019

$

710,641

$

396,818

104,725

42,799

267,887

129,110

$

52,302
23,483
29,958
2,812
25,395
56,930
12,932
308,537
(19,725)
1,227
17,222
(38,174)
(2,290)
(35,884)

$

31,321
16,120
15,746
1,634
1,995
38,681
9,617
157,913
(19,944)
0
7,700
(27,644)
(7,298)
(20,346)

$

132,395
60,110
72,244
6,266
30,686
156,433
32,535
758,556
(47,915)
8,978
39,676
(96,569)
(5,400)
(91,169)

$

84,341
48,164
48,398
5,239
4,143
113,212
29,065
461,672
(64,854)
0
21,432
(86,286)
(6,466)
(79,820)

$

(0.43)

$

(0.28)

$

(1.17)

$

(1.11)

83,607,902

72,151,094

77,821,073

See accompanying notes to unaudited consolidated financial statements.
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71,601,790
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TELADOC HEALTH, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE LOSS
(In thousands, unaudited)

Net loss
Other comprehensive loss, net of tax:
Net change in unrealized gains on available-for-sale
securities
Cumulative translation adjustment
Other comprehensive loss, net of tax
Comprehensive loss

Quarter Ended September 30,
2020
2019

Nine Months Ended September 30,
2020
2019

$

(35,884)

$

(91,169)

$

0
16,285
16,285
(19,599)

$

0
11,610
11,610
(79,559)

$

(20,346)

$

(23)
(15,493)
(15,516)
(35,862)

See accompanying notes to unaudited consolidated financial statements
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$

(79,820)

$

37
(15,025)
(14,988)
(94,808)
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TELADOC HEALTH, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
(In thousands, except share data, unaudited)
Accumulated
Additional
Common Stock
Shares

Balance of December 31, 2019
Exercise of stock options
Issuance of common stock upon vesting of restricted stock
units
Issuance of common stock for 2022 Notes
Stock-based compensation
Other comprehensive loss, net of tax
Net loss
Balance as of March 31, 2020
Exercise of stock options
Issuance of common stock upon vesting of restricted stock
units
Issuance of stock under employee stock purchase plan
Issuance of common stock for 2022 Notes
Equity portion of extinguishment of 2022 Notes
Equity component of 2027 Notes, net of issuance costs
Stock-based compensation
Other comprehensive loss, net of tax
Net loss
Balance as of June 30, 2020
Exercise of stock options
Issuance of common stock upon vesting of restricted stock
units
Issuance of common stock for 2022 Notes
Equity portion of extinguishment of 2022 Notes
Issuance of common stock for 2025 Notes
Equity portion of extinguishment of 2025 Notes
Issuance of common stock in acquisition
Stock-based compensation
Other comprehensive loss, net of tax
Net loss
Balance as of September 30, 2020

72,761,941
671,279

Balance as of December 31, 2018
Exercise of stock options
Issuance of common stock upon vesting of restricted stock
units
Stock-based compensation
Other comprehensive loss, net of tax
Net loss
Balance as of March 31, 2019
Exercise of stock options
Issuance of restricted stock units
Issuance of stock under employee stock purchase plan
Stock-based compensation
Other comprehensive loss, net of tax
Net loss
Balance as of June 30, 2019
Exercise of stock options
Issuance of restricted stock units
Issuance of common stock for 2022 Notes
Stock-based compensation
Other comprehensive loss, net of tax
Net loss
Balance as of September 30, 2019

70,516,249
564,102

Paid-In

Amount

$

73
0

Capital

$ 1,538,716
14,830

Other

Total

Accumulated

Comprehensive

Stockholders’

Deficit

Loss

Equity

$ (507,525) $
0

(17,239) $ 1,014,025
0
14,830

642,411
655
0
0
0
74,076,286
927,684

1
0
0
0
0
74
1

(1)
58
18,421
0
0
1,572,024
18,682

0
0
0
0
(29,603)
(537,128)
0

0
0
0
(17,554)
0
(34,793)
0

0
58
18,421
(17,554)
(29,603)
1,000,177
18,683

109,768
35,901
3,949,794
0
0
0
0
0
79,099,433
400,555

0
0
4
0
0
0
0
0
79
0

(0)
2,473
693,802
(715,151)
285,601
22,142
0
0
1,879,573
7,113

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
(25,682)
(562,810)
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
12,880
0
(21,913)
0

0
2,473
693,806
(715,151)
285,601
22,142
12,880
(25,682)
1,294,929
7,113

49,396
950
0
187,346
0
4,620,665
0
0
0
84,358,345

0
0
0
0
0
5
0
0
0
84

(0)
0
187
0
(44)
0
37,780
0
(29,326)
0
918,813
0
21,178
0
0
0
0
(35,884)
$ 2,835,274 $ (598,694) $

70
1

$ 1,434,780
8,853

$ (408,661) $
0

(13,070) $ 1,013,119
0
8,854

0
0
0
0
71
1
0
0
0
0
0
72
0
0
0
0
0
0
72

0
13,523
0
0
1,457,156
6,846
0
1,875
17,368
0
0
1,483,245
9,119
0
8
17,833
0
0
$ 1,510,205

0
0
0
(30,150)
(438,811)
0
0
0
0
0
(29,324)
(468,135)
0
0
0
0
0
(20,346)
$ (488,481) $

0
0
0
13,523
(3,788)
(3,788)
0
(30,150)
(16,858)
1,001,558
0
6,847
0
0
0
1,875
0
17,368
4,316
4,316
0
(29,324)
(12,542)
1,002,640
0
9,119
0
0
0
8
0
17,833
(15,516)
(15,516)
0
(20,346)
(28,058) $ 993,738

383,060
0
0
0
71,463,411
350,219
85,035
35,716
0
0
0
71,934,381
356,691
65,622
155
0
0
0
72,356,849

$
$

$

See accompanying notes to unaudited consolidated financial statements.

0
0
0
187
0
(44)
0
37,780
0
(29,326)
0
918,818
0
21,178
16,285
16,285
0
(35,884)
(5,628) $ 2,231,036
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TELADOC HEALTH, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(In thousands, unaudited)
Nine Months Ended September 30,
2020
2019
Cash flows used in operating activities:
Net loss
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization
Allowance for doubtful accounts
Stock-based compensation
Deferred income taxes
Accretion of interest
Loss on extinguishment of debt
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Inventory
Other assets
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities
Accrued compensation
Deferred Revenue
Operating lease liabilities
Other liabilities
Net cash provided by operating activities
Cash flows (used in) provided by investing activities:
Purchase of property and equipment
Purchase of internally-developed software
Proceeds from marketable securities
Sale of assets
Investment in securities
Acquisition of business, net of cash acquired
Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities
Cash flows provided by financing activities:
Net proceeds from the exercise of stock options
Proceeds from issuance of 2027 Notes
Issuance costs of 2027 Notes
Repurchase of 2022 Notes
Proceeds from advances from financing companies
Payment from customers against advances from financing companies
Proceeds from employee stock purchase plan
Cash received (paid) for withholding taxes on stock-based compensation, net
Net cash provided by financing activities
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Foreign exchange difference
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the period
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the period

$

$

(91,169)

$

(79,820)

38,029
2,320
61,151
(4,096)
29,459
8,978

33,860
1,717
48,245
(10,288)
19,422
0

(16,450)
(5,906)
(2,392)
140
6,584
17,269
9,329
15,348
(4,360)
(2,809)
61,425

(12,386)
(2,219)
0
73
(1,976)
14,304
(1,813)
6,708
(1,481)
(2,599)
11,747

(2,872)
(14,515)
0
0
(0)
(159,663)
(177,050)

(2,847)
(4,658)
39,165
10
(5,000)
(11,204)
15,466

40,627
1,000,000
(24,070)
(228,153)
1,924
(4,427)
2,473
326
788,700
673,075
(129)
514,353
1,187,299

24,820
0
0
0
0
0
1,875
(1,642)
25,053
52,266
(1,013)
423,989
475,242

$

Income taxes paid

$

786

$

846

Interest paid

$

5,612

$

6,112

See accompanying notes to unaudited consolidated financial statements.
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Note 1. Organization and Description of Business
Teladoc, Inc. was incorporated in the State of Texas in June 2002 and changed its state of incorporation to the State of
Delaware in October 2008. Effective August 10, 2018, Teladoc, Inc. changed its corporate name to Teladoc Health, Inc. Unless
the context otherwise requires, Teladoc Health, Inc., together with its subsidiaries, is referred to herein as “Teladoc Health” or the
“Company”. The Company’s principal executive office is located in Purchase, New York. Teladoc Health is the global leader in
providing virtual healthcare services with a focus on high quality, lower costs, and improved outcomes around the world.
On July 1, 2020, the Company completed the acquisition of InTouch Technologies, Inc. (“InTouch”), the leading
provider of enterprise telehealth solutions for hospitals and health systems. See Note 4 “Business Acquisition”. On August 5,
2020, Teladoc Health announced that it had entered into a definitive merger agreement with Livongo Health, Inc. (“Livongo”),
which represents a transformational opportunity to improve the delivery, access and experience of healthcare for consumers
around the world. The merger closed on October 30, 2020. See Note 16 “Subsequent Event”.
Note 2. Basis of Presentation and Principles of Consolidation
Basis of Presentation and Principles of Consolidation
The accompanying unaudited consolidated financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with
U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (“GAAP”) and applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange
Commission (the “SEC”) regarding interim financial reporting. In the opinion of the Company’s management, the accompanying
unaudited consolidated financial statements contain all adjustments (consisting of normal recurring accruals and adjustments)
necessary to present fairly the financial position, results of operations and cash flows of the Company at the dates and for the
periods indicated. The interim results for the quarter and nine months ended September 30, 2020 are not necessarily indicative of
results for the full 2020 calendar year or any other future interim periods. As such, the information included in this quarterly
report on Form 10-Q should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes included
in the Company’s Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2019 (the “2019 Form 10-K”).
The unaudited consolidated financial statements include the results of Teladoc Health, its wholly owned subsidiaries, as
well as two professional associations, eleven professional corporations and a service corporation (the “Association”).
Teladoc Physicians, P.A. became Teladoc Health Medical Group, P.A. on January 1, 2020. Teladoc Health Medical
Group, P.A. is party to several services agreements by and among it and the professional corporations pursuant to which each
professional corporation provides services to Teladoc Health Medical Group, P.A. Each professional corporation is established
pursuant to the requirements of its respective domestic jurisdiction governing the corporate practice of medicine.
The Company holds a variable interest in the Association which contracts with physicians and other health professionals
in order to provide services to Teladoc Health. The Association is considered a variable interest entity (“VIE”) since it does not
have sufficient equity to finance its activities without additional subordinated financial support. An enterprise having a
controlling financial interest in a VIE, must consolidate the VIE if it has both power and benefits—that is, it has (1) the power to
direct the activities of a VIE that most significantly impact the VIE’s economic performance (power) and (2) the obligation to
absorb losses of the VIE that potentially could be significant to the VIE or the right to receive benefits from the VIE that
potentially could be significant to the VIE (benefits). The Company has the power and rights to control all activities of the
Association and funds and absorbs all losses of the VIE.
Total revenue and net (loss) income for the VIE were $48.9 million and $(0.7) million, respectively, for the quarter
ended September 30, 2020 and $17.2 million and $0.2 million, respectively, for the quarter ended September 30, 2019. Total
revenue and net (loss) income for the VIE were $149.1 million and $0.1 million, respectively, for the nine months ended
September 30, 2020 and $55.7 million and $(0.1) million, respectively, for the nine months ended September 30, 2019. The
VIE’s total assets were $28.1 million and $13.6 million at September 30, 2020 and December 31, 2019, respectively. Total
liabilities for the VIE were $65.7 million and $51.3 million at September 30, 2020 and December 31, 2019, respectively. The
VIE’s total stockholders’ deficit was $37.6 million and $37.7 million at September 30, 2020 and December 31, 2019,
respectively.
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The functional currency for each of the Company’s foreign subsidiaries is the local currency. All assets and liabilities
denominated in a foreign currency are translated into U.S. dollars at the exchange rate on the balance sheet date. Revenues and
expenses are translated at the weighted average exchange rate during the period. Cumulative translation gains or losses are
included in stockholders’ equity as a component of accumulated other comprehensive income (loss).
The Company operates in a single reportable segment – health services. Revenue earned by foreign operations outside
of the United States were $32.9 million and $27.4 million for the quarters ended September 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively.
Revenue earned by foreign operations outside of the United States were $92.8 million and $78.7 million for the nine months
ended September 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively. Long-lived assets from foreign operations totaled $1.6 million and $2.2
million as of September 30, 2020 and December 31, 2019, respectively.
All intercompany transactions and balances have been eliminated.
Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes. The Company
bases its estimates on historical experience, current business factors, and various other assumptions that the Company believes
are necessary to consider to form a basis for making judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities, the recorded
amounts of revenue and expenses, and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities. The Company is subject to uncertainties
such as the impact of future events, economic and political factors, and changes in the Company’s business environment;
therefore, actual results could differ from these estimates. Accordingly, the accounting estimates used in the preparation of the
Company’s consolidated financial statements will change as new events occur, as more experience is acquired, as additional
information is obtained and as the Company’s operating environment evolves.
Changes in estimates are made when circumstances warrant. Such changes in estimates and refinements in estimation
methodologies are reflected in reported results of operations; if material, the effects of changes in estimates are disclosed in the
notes to the consolidated financial statements. On an ongoing basis, management evaluates its estimates compared to historical
experience and trends, which form the basis for making judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities, the recorded
amounts of revenue and expenses, and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities. Key estimates are used for revenue
recognition criteria, purchase accounting, net realizable value for inventories, useful lives of property and equipment as well as
rental equipment, carrying value of all long-lived assets, recognition, accounting for convertible notes transactions, disclosure of
contingent liabilities, and assumptions used in determining appropriate accounting treatment of leasing transactions, among other
material accounting policies as described in the Summary of Significant Accounting policies in this Quarterly Report on Form
10-Q and in the 2019 Form 10-K.
Presentation
Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform to the current year presentation.
Cost of revenue includes product depreciation but excludes all other forms of depreciation and amortization.
Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements
In December 2019, FASB issued ASU 2019-12 Simplification of Income Taxes (Topic 740). ASU 2019-12 simplifies
the accounting for income taxes by removing certain exceptions to the general principles in Topic 740. The amendments also
improve consistent application of and simplify GAAP for other areas of Topic 740 by clarifying and amending existing guidance.
ASU 2019-12 is effective for public companies for annual periods beginning after December 15, 2020, including interim periods
within those fiscal years. We have early adopted ASU 2019-12 on our consolidated financial statements and disclosures effective
January 1, 2020, with no material impact to the financial statements.
In January 2017, the FASB issued ASU 2017-04, Goodwill Simplifications (Topic 350). ASU 2017-04 simplifies the
test for goodwill impairment. The new guidance eliminates Step 2 from the goodwill impairment test as currently prescribed in
the U.S. generally accepted accounting principle. This ASU is the result of the FASB project

8

Table of Contents

focused on simplifications to accounting for goodwill. The new guidance was effective for the first quarter of 2020 and was
adopted in the quarter-ended December 31, 2019.
In June 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-13, Financial Instruments - Credit Losses (Topic 326) Measurement of Credit
Losses on Financial Instruments. ASU 2016-13 requires an entity to utilize a new impairment model known as the current
expected credit loss ("CECL") model to estimate its lifetime "expected credit loss" and record an allowance that, when deducted
from the amortized cost basis of the financial asset, presents the net amount expected to be collected on the financial asset. The
CECL model is expected to result in more timely recognition of credit losses. ASU 2016-13 requires new disclosures for
financial assets measured at amortized cost, loans and available-for-sale debt securities. ASU 2016- 13 is effective for public
companies for annual periods beginning after December 13, 2019, including interim periods within those fiscal years. The
standard applies as a cumulative-effect adjustment to retained earnings as of the beginning of the first reporting period in which
the guidance is adopted. The guidance was effective and adopted in the quarter ended March 31, 2020, with no material impact to
the financial statements.
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
In conjunction with the recent acquisiton of In Touch, the Company’s significant accounting policies were expanded to
include the following policies.
Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value on a first-in, first-out (FIFO) basis. Inventory costs
include direct materials,direct labor and contracting costs, certain indirect labor and manufacturing overhead and inbound
shipping charges. Inventories are assessed on a periodic basis for potential obsolete and slow-moving inventory with writedownsbeing recorded when identified.
Rental Equipment
Equipment is assigned to the rental pool upon the execution of a sales leasing arrangement. Rental equipment assets are
generally stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and reflected in property and equipment, net. Depreciation of rental
equipment is provided on a straight-line basis, over the estimated useful lives of the respective assets, which is generally 4.3 years
and is charged to cost of revenues.
Leases
Thc Company rents its hosted virtual health platform for certain clients under arrangements that qualify as either salestype lease or operating lease arrangements. The contracts include equipment consisting of virtual health devices which allow
phyisicians access to the platform and there are multiple performance obligations where the Company determines the standalone
selling prices based on overall selling prices and pricing objectives. In determining whether a transaction should be classified as a
sales-type or operating lease, the Company considers the following terms: (1) ownership of the virtual health device transfers to
the lessee by the end of the term of the lease, (2) the lease grants the lessee an option to purchase the virtual health device that the
lessee is reasonably certain to exercise, (3) the lease term is for themajor part of the remaining useful life of the virtual health
device, (4) the present value of the sum of the lease payments equals or exceeds substantially all of the fair value of the virtual
health device, and (5) it is expected that there will be no alternative use for the virtual health device at the end of the lease term.
The Company generally recognizes revenue for virtual health devices in sales-type leases at the time of acceptance by
the client provided all other revenue recognition criteria have been met and these leases are not material. For operating lease
arrangements, revenue for the virtual health device is recognized over the lease term and generally on a straight-line basis. For
both sales-type and operating lease arrangnement, revenue associated with virtual health platform access is recognized over the
lease term on a straight line basis.
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Advances from Financing Companies
The Company utilizes a third-party financing company to provide its certain clients with a rental option. Under these
arrangements, the Company receives payment up front from the financing companies and the financing companies collect the
client rental payments over the life of the rtental agreement on a nonrecourse basis. The principal portion of these up-front
payments are reported as advances from financing companies in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. The Company
indemnifies the financing companies for any loss or expenses resulting from its failure to provide the ongoing necessary system
services and support to the client.
There have been no other material changes to the significant accounting policies described in the 2019 Form 10-K that
have had a material impact on the consolidated financial statements and related notes other than those as discussed above. The
Company has not experienced any significant impact to it’s estimates and assumptions as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic.
On an ongoing basis, the Company will continue to closely monitor for any changes to the related impacts, especially on the
allowance for doubtful accounts.
Note 3. Revenue
The Company primarily generates virtual healthcare service revenue from contracts with clients who purchase access to
the Company’s professional provider network or medical experts for their employees, dependents and other beneficiaries. The
Company’s client contracts include a per-member-per-month access fee as well as certain contracts that generate additional
revenue on a per-virtual healthcare visit basis for general medical, other specialty visits and expert medical service on a per case
basis. The Company also has certain contracts that generate revenue based solely on a per healthcare visit basis for general
medical and other specialty visits. For the Company’s direct-to-consumer behavioral health product, members purchase access to
the Company’s professional provider network for a access fee.
Revenue is also generated from contracts with clients for the sale and rental of access to the Company’s hosted virtual
healthcare platform. These contracts include equipment consisting of virtual health devices which allow physicians access to the
platform. These contracts also include multiple performance obligations and the Company determines the standalone selling
prices based on overall pricing objectives. In some arrangements, the Company’s hosted virtual health platform are rented to
certain qualified clients that qualify as either sales-type lease or operating lease arrangements and are subject to lease accounting
guidance.
Accordingly, the Company generates access fees from clients accessing it’s professional provider network or hosted
virtual healthcare platform, visit fee revenue for general medical, expert medical service and other specialty visits as well as other
revenue primarily associated with virtual healthcare device equipment included with it’s hosted virtual healthcare platform.
The Company’s agreements generally have a term of one year. The majority of clients renew their contracts following
their first year of services. Revenues are recognized when the Company satisfies its performance obligation to stand ready to
provide virtual healthcare services which occurs when the Company’s clients and members have access to and obtain control of
the virtual healthcare service or platform. Additionally, contracts where revenue is generated on a per healthcare visit basis,
revenues are recognized when the visits are completed as the Company has delivered on its stand ready obligation to provide
access. For other revenue which primarily includes virtual healthcare devices, the Company’s performance obligation is satisfied
when the equipment is provided to the client and revenue is recognized at a point in time upon shipment.
The Company generally bills for the virtual healthcare services on a monthly basis with payment terms generally being
30 days. There are not significant differences between the timing of revenue recognition and billing. Consequently, the Company
has determined that client contracts do not include a financing component. Revenue is recognized in an amount that reflects the
consideration that is expected in exchange for the service and for certain contracts includes a variable transaction price as the
number of members may vary from period to period. Based on historical experience, the Company estimates this amount.
Access revenue accounted for approximately 78% and 86% of our total revenue for the quarters ended September 30,
2020 and 2019, respectively. Access revenue accounted for approximately 77% and 85% of our total revenue for the nine months
ended September 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively.
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The following table presents the Company’s revenues disaggregated by revenue source (in thousands):
Quarter Ended
September 30,
2020
2019

Access Fees:
U.S.
International
Visit Fee Revenue:
U.S. Paid Visits
U.S. Visit Fee Only
International Paid Visits
Other:
U.S.
International
Total Revenues

$ 194,622
31,997

$

Nine Months Ended
September 30,
2020
2019

92,095
27,030

$ 454,582
91,261

$ 258,604
77,716

35,074
15,874
96

14,142
4,307
395

105,013
47,931
705

47,473
11,974
1,051

10,299
850
$ 288,812

0
0
$ 137,969

10,299
850
$ 710,641

0
0
$ 396,818

As of September 30, 2020, accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts, were $85.8 million. The
allowance for doubtful accounts reflects our best estimate of expected losses inherent in the accounts receivable balance. The
Company determines the allowance based on historical experience, specific account information and other currently available
evidence.
For certain services, payment is required for future months before the service is delivered to the client or member. The
Company records deferred revenue when cash payments are received in advance of the Company’s performance obligation to
provide services. The net increase of $36.8 million and $6.7 million in the deferred revenue balance for the nine months ended
September 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively, are primarily driven by the recent acquisition of In Touch in 2020 as well as the
direct-to-consumer behavioral health product and cash payments received or due in advance of satisfying the Company’s
performance obligations, offset by revenue recognized that were included in the deferred revenue balance at the beginning of the
period. The Company anticipates that it will satisfy most of its performance obligations associated with the deferred revenue
within the prospective fiscal year.
The Company’s contracts do not generally contain refund provisions for fees earned related to services performed.
However, the Company’s direct-to-consumer behavioral health service provides for member refunds. Based on historical
experience, the Company estimates the expected amount of refunds to be issued which are recorded as a reduction of revenue.
The Company issued refunds of approximately $3.3 million and $0.9 million for the quarter ended September 30, 2020 and 2019,
respectively. The Company issued refunds of approximately $7.0 million and $2.1 million for the nine months ended September
30, 2020 and 2019, respectively.
Additionally, certain of the Company’s contracts include client performance guarantees that are based upon minimum
Member utilization and guarantees by the Company for specific service level performance of the Company’s services. If client
performance guarantees are not being realized, the Company records, as a reduction to revenue, an estimate of the amount that
will be due at the end of the respective client’s contractual period. For the quarter and nine months ended September 30, 2020
and 2019, revenue recognized from performance obligations related to prior periods for the aforementioned changes in
transaction price or client performance guarantees, were not material.
The Company has elected the optional exemption to not disclose the remaining performance obligations of its contracts
since substantially all of its contracts have a duration of one year or less and the variable consideration expected to be received
over the duration of the contract is allocated entirely to the wholly unsatisfied performance obligations.
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Note 4. Business Acquisitions
On July 1, 2020, the Company completed the acquisition of InTouch through a merger in which InTouch became a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. The preliminary aggregate merger consideration paid was $1,078.5 million, net of
cash acquired of $1.1 million, which was comprised of 4.6 million shares of Teladoc’s common stock valued at $918.8 million on
July 1, 2020, and $160.7 million of cash. InTouch is a leading provider of enterprise telehealth solutions for hospitals and health
systems. The acquisition was considered a stock acquisition for tax purposes and accordingly, the goodwill resulting from this
acquisition is not tax deductible. The total acquisition related costs were $12.5 million and included transaction costs for
investment bankers and other professional fees.
On April 30, 2019, the Company completed the acquisition of the Paris-based telemedicine provider MedecinDirect in
which MedecinDirect became a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. The aggregate merger consideration paid was $11.2
million with additional potential earnout consideration. The acquisition was considered a stock acquisition for tax purposes and
accordingly, the goodwill resulting from the acquisition is not tax deductible.
The acquisitions described above were accounted for using the acquisition method of accounting, which requires,
among other things, the assets acquired and the liabilities assumed be recognized at their fair values as of the acquisition date.
The results of the acquisitions were included within the consolidated financial statements commencing on the aforementioned
acquisition dates.
The following table summarizes the preliminary fair value estimates of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed for
the July 2020 InTouch Health acquisition at the acquisition date. The Company, with the assistance of a third-party valuation
expert, estimated the preliminary fair value of the acquired tangible and intangible assets with significant estimates such as
revenue projections. The allocation of the consideration transferred to the assets acquired and the liabilities assumed is
preliminary. This can be revised as a result of additional information obtained due to the finalization of the valuation inputs and
assumptions as well as completing the assessment of the tax attributes of the business combination. Additional adjustments that
could have a material impact on the Company’s results of operations and financial position may be recorded within the
measurement period, which will not exceed one year from the acquisition date.
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed (in thousands):
InTouch Health

Purchase price, net of cash acquired
Less:
Accounts receivable
Inventory
Property and equipment, net
Others assets
Client relationships
Technology
Trademarks
Advances from financing companies
Accounts payable
Deferred revenue
Other liabilities
Goodwill

$

$

1,078,480
16,517
9,444
11,366
7,506
110,240
29,190
32,630
(26,012)
(5,589)
(21,271)
(23,004)
937,463

The amount allocated to goodwill reflects the benefits Teladoc expects to realize from the growth of the acquisition’s
operations.
The Company’s unaudited pro forma revenue and net loss for the quarters ended September 30, 2020 and 2019 and for
the nine months ended September 30, 2020 and 2019 below have been prepared as if InTouch had been purchased on January 1,
2019. The Company made some pro-forma adjustments related to amortization of intangible assets, interest expense, stock based
compensation. The Company’s pro-forma net loss excluded acquisition costs and transaction expenses of $9.2 million and $0.5
million for the quarter ended September 30,2020 and 2019, respectively, and $31.8 million and $0.9 million for the nine months
ended September 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively.
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Unaudited Pro Forma
Quarters Ended
September 30,
2020
2019

(in thousands)

Revenue
Net loss

$ 288,812
$ (27,772)

$ 159,965
$ (27,734)

Unaudited Pro Forma
Nine Months Ended
September 30,
2020
2019

$ 762,995 $ 457,093
$ (100,990) $ (100,287)

The unaudited pro forma financial information above is not necessarily indicative of what the Company’s consolidated results
actually would have been if the acquisition had been completed at the beginning of the respective periods. In addition, the
unaudited pro forma information above does not attempt to project the Company’s future results. The Company recorded
approximately $25 million of revenue, net of deferred revenue acquisition related fair value adjustments, and approximately $(6)
million of net loss from InTouch for both the quarter and nine months ended September 30, 2020.
Note 5. Intangible Assets, Net
Intangible assets, net consist of the following (in thousands):

Useful
Life

September 30, 2020
Client relationships
Non-compete agreements
Trademarks
Patents
Internal-use software and other
Intangible assets, net
December 31, 2019
Client relationships
Non-compete agreements
Trademarks
Patents
Internal-use software and other
Intangible assets, net

2 to 20 years
1.5 to 5 years
3 to 15 years
3 years
3 to 5 years

2 to 20 years
1.5 to 5 years
3 to 15 years
3 years
3 to 5 years

Accumulated
Amortization

Net Carrying
Value

$ 350,600
5,025
75,738
200
80,301
$ 511,864

$

(80,528)
(4,682)
(9,919)
(200)
(29,962)
$ (125,291)

$

$ 237,182
4,958
42,606
200
34,850
$ 319,796

$

$

Gross Value

$

(60,647)
(4,260)
(7,143)
(200)
(22,093)
(94,343)

$

$

Weighted
Average
Remaining
Useful Life

270,072
343
65,819
0
50,339
386,573

15.1
0.7
13.4
0
3.9
12.6

176,535
698
35,463
0
12,757
225,453

13.1
1.4
12.9
0
2.3
12.4

Amortization expense for intangible assets was $11.7 million and $8.7 million for the quarters ended September 30,
2020 and 2019, respectively. Amortization expense for intangible assets was $29.6 million and $26.4 million for the nine months
ended September 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively.
Note 6. Goodwill
Goodwill consists of the following (in thousands):
As of September 30,
2020

Beginning balance
Additions associated with acquisitions
Cumulative translation adjustment
Goodwill

$
$

13

746,079
937,463
7,813
1,691,355

As of December 31,
2019

$
$

737,197
10,604
(1,722)
746,079

Table of Contents

Note 7. Accrued Expenses and Other Current Liabilities
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities consist of the following (in thousands):
2020

Professional fees
Consulting fees/provider fees
Client performance guarantees
Legal fees
Interest payable
Income tax payable
Insurance
Marketing
Operating lease liabilities - current
Earnout
Other
Total

$

$

2019

3,011
19,255
3,575
2,364
6,492
2,704
3,205
5,983
7,276
4,552
6,713
65,130

$

1,535
10,618
3,298
1,077
838
2,859
1,263
2,810
5,088
0
5,053
34,439

$

Note 8. Fair Value Measurements
The Company measures its financial assets and liabilities at fair value at each reporting period using a fair value
hierarchy that requires it to maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs when measuring
fair value. A financial instrument’s classification within the fair value hierarchy is based upon the lowest level of input that is
significant to the fair value measurement. Three levels of inputs may be used to measure fair value:
Level 1—Observable inputs that reflect quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical assets or liabilities in active
markets.
Level 2—Include other inputs that are directly or indirectly observable in the marketplace.
Level 3—Unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity.
The Company measures its cash equivalents at fair value on a recurring basis. The Company classifies its cash
equivalents within Level 1 because they are valued using observable inputs that reflect quoted prices for identical assets in active
markets and quoted prices directly in active markets.
The Company measures its short-term investments at fair value on a recurring basis and classifies such as Level 2. They
are valued using observable inputs that reflect quoted prices directly or indirectly in active markets. The short-term investments
amortized cost approximates fair value.
The Company measured its contingent consideration at fair value on a recurring basis and classified such as Level 3.
The Company estimates the fair value of contingent consideration as the present value of the expected contingent payments,
determined using the weighted probability of the possible payments.
The following tables present information about the Company’s assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value on a
recurring basis using the above input categories (in thousands):
September 30, 2020
Level 2
Level 3

Level 1

$ 1,187,299
$
0
$
0

Cash and cash equivalents
Short-term investments
Contingent liability

14

$
$
$

0
3,070
0

$
$
$

0
0
4,552

Total

$ 1,187,299
$
3,070
$
4,552
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December 31, 2019
Level 2
Level 3

Level 1

$
$
$

Cash and cash equivalents
Short-term investments
Contingent liability

514,353
0
0

$
$
$

0
2,711
0

$
$
$

Total

0
0
4,769

$
$
$

514,353
2,711
4,769

There were no transfers between fair value measurement levels during the quarter and nine months ended September 30,
2020 and 2019.
The change in fair value of the Company’s contingent liability is recorded in acquisition and integration related costs in
the consolidated statements of operations. The contingent liability is based on future revenue and profitability expectations. The
following table reconciles the beginning and ending balance of the Company’s Level 3 contingent liability:
Fair value at December 31, 2019
Payments
Change in fair value
Currency translation adjustment
Fair value at September 30, 2020

$

$

4,769
0
(432)
215
4,552

Note 9. Revolving Credit Facility
The Company entered into a $10.0 million Senior Secured Revolving Credit Facility (the “Revolving Credit Facility”)
in 2017. The Revolving Credit Facility was terminated pursuant to its terms effective July 14, 2020. There was no amount
outstanding as of December 31, 2019.
The Company was in compliance with all debt covenants at December 31, 2019.
Note 10. Leasing Operations
The Company commenced a new 5 year lease on March 1, 2020 for office space in Santa Clara, CA. As a result the
Company recorded a right-of-use asset and lease liability of $6.8 million as of March 1, 2020.
The Company rents its systems to certain qualified customers under arrangements that qualify as either
sales-type lease or operating lease arrangements. Leases have terms that generally range from two to five years.
Operating Leases
Minimum future lease receipts on noncancelable leases as of September 30, 2020 are as follows:
As of
September 30, 2020

Operating Leases:
2020
2021
2022
2023
Total receipts on noncancelable operating leases

$

$

15

4,712
13,161
6,533
962
25,368
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Note 11. Convertible Senior Notes
Convertible Senior Notes Due 2027
On May 19, 2020, the Company issued, at par value, $1 billion aggregate principal amount of 1.25% convertible senior
notes due 2027 (the “2027 Notes”). The 2027 Notes bear cash interest at a rate of 1.25% per year, payable semi-annually in
arrears on June 1 and December 1 of each year, beginning on December 15, 2020. The 2027 Notes will mature on June 1, 2027.
The net proceeds to the Company from the offering were $975.9 million after deducting offering costs of approximately $24.1
million.
The 2027 Notes are senior unsecured obligations of the Company and rank senior in right of payment to the Company’s
indebtedness that is expressly subordinated in right of payment to the 2027 Notes; equal in right of payment to the Company’s
liabilities that is not so subordinated; effectively junior in right of payment to any of the Company’s secured indebtedness to the
extent of the value of the assets securing such indebtedness; and structurally junior to all indebtedness and other liabilities
incurred by the Company’s subsidiaries.
Holders may convert all or any portion of their 2027 Notes in integral multiples of $1,000 principal amount, at their
option, at any time prior to the close of business on the business day immediately preceding December 1, 2026 only under the
following circumstances:
●

during any calendar quarter commencing after the calendar quarter ending on September 30, 2020 (and only during
such calendar quarter), if the last reported sale price of the shares of Company’s common stock for at least 20
trading days (whether or not consecutive) during a period of 30 consecutive trading days ending on the last trading
day of the immediately preceding calendar quarter is greater than or equal to 130% of the conversion price for the
2027 Notes on each applicable trading day;

●

during the five business day period after any ten consecutive trading day period in which the trading price was less
than 98% of the product of the last reported sale price of Company’s common stock and the conversion rate for the
2027 Notes on each such trading day;

●

upon the occurrence of specified corporate events described under the 2027 Notes Indenture; or

●

if the Company calls the 2027 Notes for redemption, at any time until the close of business on the second business
day immediately preceding the redemption date.

On or after December 1, 2026, until the close of business on the second scheduled trading day immediately preceding
the maturity date, holders may convert all or any portion of their 2027 Notes, regardless of the foregoing circumstances.
The conversion rate for the 2027 Notes was initially, and remains, 4.1258 shares of the Company’s common stock per
$1,000 principal amount of the 2027 Notes, which is equal to an initial conversion price of approximately $242.38 per share of
the Company’s common stock. Upon conversion, the Company will pay or deliver, as the case may be, cash, shares of the
Company’s common stock or a combination thereof, at the Company’s election. If the Company elects to satisfy the conversion
obligation solely in cash or through payment and delivery, as the case may be, of a combination of cash and shares of the
Company’s common stock, the amount of cash and shares of the Company’s common stock, if any, due upon conversion will be
based on a daily conversion value calculated on a proportionate basis for each trading day in a 25 consecutive trading days
observation period.
The Company may redeem for cash all or part of the 2027 Notes, at its option, on or after June 5, 2024 if the last
reported sale price of its common stock exceeds 130% of the conversion price then in effect for at least 20 trading days (whether
or not consecutive) during any 30 consecutive trading days ending on, and including the trading day immediately preceding the
date on which the Company provides notice of the redemption. The redemption price will be the principal amount of the 2027
Notes to be redeemed, plus accrued and unpaid interest, if any. In addition, calling any 2027 Note for redemption on or after June
5, 2024 will constitute a make-whole fundamental change with respect to that 2027 Note, in which case the conversion rate
applicable to the conversion of that 2027 Note, if it is converted in connection with the redemption, will be increased in certain
circumstances as described in the indenture governing the 2027 Notes.

16

Table of Contents

In accounting for the issuance of the 2027 Notes, the Company separated the 2027 Notes into liability and equity
components. The carrying amount of the liability component was calculated by measuring the fair value of a similar liability that
does not have an associated convertible feature. The carrying amount of the equity component representing the conversion option
was determined by deducting the fair value of the liability component from the par value of the 2027 Notes as a whole. The
excess of the principal amount of the liability component over its carrying amount, referred to as the debt discount, is amortized
to interest expense from the issuance date to June 1, 2027. The equity component is not re-measured as long as it continues to
meet the conditions for equity classification. The equity component related to the 2027 Notes was $286 million, net of issuance
costs which was recorded in additional paid-in capital on the accompanying condensed consolidated balance sheet. The Company
has reserved 5.4 million shares of common stock for the 2027 Notes.
In accounting for the transaction costs related to the issuance of the 2027 Notes, the Company allocated the total costs
incurred to the liability and equity components of the 2027 Notes based on their relative values. Transaction costs attributable to
the liability component are being amortized to interest expense over the seven year term of the 2027 Notes, and transaction costs
attributable to the equity component are netted with the equity components in stockholders’ equity.
The 2027 Notes consist of the following (in thousands):
As of September 30,
2020

Liability component

Principal
Less: Debt discount, net (1)
Net carrying amount

$

1,000,000
(296,760)
703,240

$

(1) Included in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet within convertiable senior notes and amortized to interest
expense over the expected life of the 2027 Notes using the effective interest rate method.
The fair value of the 2027 Notes was approximately $1,246.3 million as of September 30, 2020. The Company estimates
the fair value of its 2027 Notes utilizing market quotations for debt that have quoted prices in active markets. Since the 2027
Notes do not trade on a daily basis in an active market, the fair value estimates are based on market observable inputs based on
borrowing rates currently available for debt with similar terms and average maturities, which are classified as Level 2
measurements within the fair value hierarchy. See Note 8, “Fair Value Measurements,” for definitions of hierarchy levels. As of
September 30, 2020, the remaining contractual life of the 2027 Notes is approximately 6.7 years.
The following table sets forth total interest expense recognized related to the 2027 Notes (in thousands):

Contractual interest expense
Amortization of debt discount
Total
Effective interest rate of the liability component

Quarters Ended
September 30,
2020

Nine Months Ended
September 30,
2020

$

$

3,125
8,989
$ 12,114
7.0 %

$

4,618
12,911
17,529
7.0 %

Convertible Senior Notes Due 2025
On May 8, 2018, the Company issued, at par value, $287.5 million aggregate principal amount of 1.375% convertible
senior notes due 2025 (the “2025 Notes”). The 2025 Notes bear cash interest at a rate of 1.375% per year, payable semi-annually
in arrears on May 15 and November 15 of each year. The 2025 Notes will mature on May 15, 2025. The net proceeds to the
Company from the offering were $279.1 million after deducting offering costs of approximately $8.4 million.
The 2025 Notes are senior unsecured obligations of the Company and rank senior in right of payment to the Company’s
indebtedness that is expressly subordinated in right of payment to the 2025 Notes; equal in right of payment to the Company’s
liabilities that is not so subordinated; effectively junior in right of payment to any of the Company’s
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secured indebtedness to the extent of the value of the assets securing such indebtedness; and structurally junior to all indebtedness
and other liabilities incurred by the Company’s subsidiaries.
Holders may convert all or any portion of their 2025 Notes in integral multiples of $1,000 principal amount, at their
option, at any time prior to the close of business on the business day immediately preceding November 15, 2024 only under the
following circumstances:
●

during any calendar quarter (and only during such calendar quarter), if the last reported sale price of the shares of
the Company’s common stock for at least 20 trading days (whether or not consecutive) during a period of 30
consecutive trading days ending on the last trading day of the immediately preceding calendar quarter is greater
than or equal to 130% of the conversion price for the 2025 Notes on each applicable trading day;

●

during the five business day period after any ten consecutive trading day period in which the trading price was less
than 98% of the product of the last reported sale price of the Company’s common stock and the conversion rate for
the 2025 Notes on each such trading day;

●

upon the occurrence of specified corporate events described under the indenture governing the 2025 Notes; or

●

if the Company calls the 2025 Notes for redemption, at any time until the close of business on the second business
day immediately preceding the redemption date.

On or after November 15, 2024, until the close of business on the second scheduled trading day immediately preceding
the maturity date, holders may convert all or any portion of their 2025 Notes, regardless of the foregoing circumstances.
The conversion rate for the 2025 Notes was initially, and remains, 18.6621 shares of the Company’s common stock per
$1,000 principal amount of the 2025 Notes, which is equivalent to an initial conversion price of approximately $53.58 per share
of the Company’s common stock. Upon conversion, the Company will pay or deliver, as the case may be, cash, shares of the
Company’s common stock or a combination thereof, at the Company’s election. If the Company elects to satisfy the conversion
obligation solely in cash or through payment and delivery, as the case may be, of a combination of cash and shares of the
Company’s common stock, the amount of cash and shares of the Company’s common stock, if any, due upon conversion will be
based on a daily conversion value calculated on a proportionate basis for each trading day in a 25 trading day observation period.
The Company may redeem for cash all or any portion of the 2025 Notes, at its option, on or after May 22, 2022 if the
last reported sale price of its common stock exceeds 130% of the conversion price then in effect for at least 20 trading days
(whether or not consecutive) during any 30 consecutive trading days ending on, and including the trading day immediately
preceding the date on which the Company provides notice of the redemption. The redemption price will be the principal amount
of the 2025 Notes to be redeemed, plus accrued and unpaid interest, if any. In addition, calling any 2025 Note for redemption on
or after May 22, 2022 will constitute a make-whole fundamental change with respect to that 2025 Note, in which case the
conversion rate applicable to the conversion of that Note, if it is converted in connection with the redemption, will be increased in
certain circumstances as described in the indenture governing the 2025 Notes.
In accounting for the issuance of the 2025 Notes, the Company separated the 2025 Notes into liability and equity
components. The carrying amount of the liability component was calculated by measuring the fair value of a similar liability that
does not have an associated convertible feature. The carrying amount of the equity component representing the conversion option
was determined by deducting the fair value of the liability component from the par value of the 2025 Notes as a whole. The
excess of the principal amount of the liability component over its carrying amount, referred to as the debt discount, is amortized
to interest expense from the issuance date to May 15, 2025. The equity component is not re-measured as long as it continues to
meet the conditions for equity classification. The equity component related to the 2025 Notes was $91.4 million, net of issuance
costs which was recorded in additional paid-in capital on the accompanying consolidated balance sheet.
In accounting for the transaction costs related to the issuance of the 2025 Notes, the Company allocated the total costs
incurred to the liability and equity components of the 2025 Notes based on their relative values. Transaction
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costs attributable to the liability component are being amortized to interest expense over the seven-year term of the 2025 Notes,
and transaction costs attributable to the equity component are netted with the equity component in stockholders’ equity.
The 2025 Notes consist of the following (in thousands):
Liability component

Principal
Less: Debt discount, net (2)
Net carrying amount

As of September 30,
2020

As of December 31,
2019

$

$

$

277,557
(69,262)
208,295

$

287,500
(81,207)
206,293

(2) Included in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets within convertible senior notes and amortized to interest
expense over the expected life of the 2025 Notes using the effective interest rate method.
The fair value of the 2025 Notes was approximately $1,135.9 million as of September 30, 2020. The Company estimates
the fair value of its 2025 Notes utilizing market quotations for debt that have quoted prices in active markets. Since the 2025
Notes do not trade on a daily basis in an active market, the fair value estimates are based on market observable inputs based on
borrowing rates currently available for debt with similar terms and average maturities, which are classified as Level 2
measurements within the fair value hierarchy. See Note 8, “Fair Value Measurements,” for definitions of hierarchy levels. As of
September 30, 2020, the remaining contractual life of the 2025 Notes is approximately 4.6 years.
The following table sets forth total interest expense recognized related to the 2025 Notes (in thousands):
Quarters Ended
September 30,
2020
2019

Contractual interest expense
Amortization of debt discount
Total
Effective interest rate of the liability component

$

971
3,170
$ 4,141
7.9 %

Nine Months Ended
September 30,
2020
2019

$

988
$ 2,947
$ 2,965
2,949
9,379
8,677
$ 3,937
$ 12,326
$ 11,642
7.9 %
7.9 %
7.9 %

A few 2025 Noteholders converted their 2025 Notes into common stock, as a result the Company recorded a charge
associated with the loss on extinguishment of debt of $1.0 million during the nine months ended September 30, 2020 .
Convertible Senior Notes Due 2022
The Company had issued, at par value, $275 million aggregate principal amount of 3% convertible senior notes due
2022 (the “2022 Notes”) on June 27, 2017. The 2022 Notes bear cash interest at a rate of 3% per year, payable semi-annually in
arrears on June 15 and December 15 of each year. The remaining 2022 Notes will mature on December 15, 2022. The net
proceeds to the Company from the offering were $263.7 million after deducting offering costs of approximately $11.3 million.
The 2022 Notes are senior unsecured obligations of the Company and rank senior in right of payment to the Company’s
indebtedness that is expressly subordinated in right of payment to the 2022 Notes; equal in right of payment to the Company’s
liabilities that is not so subordinated; effectively junior in right of payment to any of the Company’s secured indebtedness to the
extent of the value of the assets securing such indebtedness; and structurally junior to all indebtedness and other liabilities
incurred by the Company’s subsidiaries.
Holders may convert all or any portion of their 2022 Notes in integral multiples of $1,000 principal amount, at their
option, at any time prior to the close of business on the business day immediately preceding June 15, 2022 only under the
following circumstances:
●

during any calendar quarter (and only during such calendar quarter), if the last reported sale price of the shares of
the Company’s common stock for at least 20 trading days (whether or not consecutive) during a period of 30
consecutive trading days ending on the last trading day of the immediately preceding calendar
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quarter is greater than or equal to 130% of the conversion price for the 2022 Notes on each applicable trading day;
●

during the five business day period after any ten consecutive trading day period in which the trading price was less
than 98% of the product of the last reported sale price of the Company’s common stock and the conversion rate for
the 2022 Notes on each such trading day;

●

upon the occurrence of specified corporate events described under the indenture governing the 2022 Notes; or

●

if the Company calls the 2022 Notes for redemption, at any time until the close of business on the second business
day immediately preceding the redemption date.

On or after June 15, 2022, until the close of business on the second scheduled trading day immediately preceding the
maturity date, holders may convert all or any portion of their 2022 Notes, regardless of the foregoing circumstances.
The conversion rate for the 2022 Notes was initially, and remains, 22.7247 shares of the Company’s common stock per
$1,000 principal amount of the 2022 Notes, which is equivalent to an initial conversion price of approximately $44.00 per share
of the Company’s common stock. Upon conversion, the Company will pay or deliver, as the case may be, cash, shares of the
Company’s common stock or a combination thereof, at the Company’s election. If the Company elects to satisfy the conversion
obligation solely in cash or through payment and delivery, as the case may be, of a combination of cash and shares of the
Company’s common stock, the amount of cash and shares of the Company’s common stock, if any, due upon conversion will be
based on a daily conversion value calculated on a proportionate basis for each trading day in a 25 trading day observation period.
The Company may redeem for cash all or any portion of the 2022 Notes, at its option, on or after December 22, 2020 if
the last reported sale price of its common stock exceeds 130% of the conversion price then in effect for at least 20 trading days
(whether or not consecutive) during any 30 consecutive trading days ending on, and including the trading day immediately
preceding the date on which the Company provides notice of the redemption. The redemption price will be the principal amount
of the 2022 Notes to be redeemed, plus accrued and unpaid interest, if any. In addition, calling any 2022 Note for redemption on
or after December 22, 2020 will constitute a make-whole fundamental change with respect to that 2022 Note, in which case the
conversion rate applicable to the conversion of that Note, if it is converted in connection with the redemption, will be increased in
certain circumstances as described in the indenture governing the 2022 Notes.
In accounting for the issuance of the 2022 Notes, the Company separated the 2022 Notes into liability and equity
components. The carrying amount of the liability component was calculated by measuring the fair value of a similar liability that
does not have an associated convertible feature. The carrying amount of the equity component representing the conversion option
was determined by deducting the fair value of the liability component from the par value of the 2022 Notes as a whole. The
excess of the principal amount of the liability component over its carrying amount, referred to as the debt discount, is amortized
to interest expense from the issuance date to June 15, 2022 (the first date on which the Company may be required to repurchase
the 2022 Notes at the option of the holder). The equity component is not re-measured as long as it continues to meet the
conditions for equity classification. The equity component related to the 2022 Notes was $62.4 million, net of issuance costs
which was recorded in additional paid-in capital on the accompanying condensed consolidated balance sheet.
In accounting for the transaction costs related to the issuance of the 2022 Notes, the Company allocated the total costs
incurred to the liability and equity components of the 2022 Notes based on their relative values. Transaction costs attributable to
the liability component are being amortized to interest expense over the five and a half year term of the 2022 Notes, and
transaction costs attributable to the equity component are netted with the equity components in stockholders’ equity.
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The 2022 Notes consist of the following (in thousands):
As of September 30,
2020

Liability component

Principal
Less: Debt discount, net (3)
Net carrying amount

$

As of December 31,
2019

46,765 $
(4,815)
41,950 $

$

274,995
(40,878)
234,117

(3) Included in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets within convertible senior notes and amortized to interest
expense over the expected life of the 2022 Notes using the effective interest rate method.
The fair value of the 2022 Notes was approximately $233.3 million as of September 30, 2020. The Company estimates
the fair value of its 2022 Notes utilizing market quotations for debt that have quoted prices in active markets. Since the 2022
Notes do not trade on a daily basis in an active market, the fair value estimates are based on market observable inputs based on
borrowing rates currently available for debt with similar terms and average maturities, which are classified as Level 2
measurements within the fair value hierarchy. See Note 8, “Fair Value Measurements,” for definitions of hierarchy levels. As of
September 30, 2020, the remaining contractual life of the 2022 Notes is approximately 2.2 years.
The following table sets forth total interest expense recognized related to the 2022 Notes (in thousands):
Quarters Ended
September 30,
2020
2019

Contractual interest expense
Amortization of debt discount
Total
Effective interest rate of the liability component

$

351
650
$ 1,001
10.0 %

$ 2,062
3,620
$ 5,682
10.0 %

Nine Months Ended
September 30,
2020
2019

$

3,696
$ 6,187
6,940
10,406
$ 10,636
$ 16,593
10.0 %
10.0 %

On May 14, 2020, the Company entered into privately negotiated agreements with certain holders of 2022 Notes to
exchange 2022 Notes for shares of the Company’s common stock, together with cash, in private placement transactions pursuant
to Section 4(a)(2) of the Securities Act (the “Exchange Transactions”). The closing occurred on May 19, 2020. In exchange for
approximately $228.2 million aggregate principal amount of 2022 Notes, the Company paid approximately $231.1 million in
cash (including accrued and unpaid interest and cash paid in lieu of fractional shares), together with an aggregate of
approximately 3.9 million shares of its common stock. As a result of the Exchange Transactions, the company recorded a charge
associated with the loss on extinguishment of debt of $9.0 million during the nine months ended September 30, 2020 .
Approximately $46.8 million aggregate principal amount of the 2022 Notes remains outstanding as of September 30,
2020.
Note 12. Advances from Financing Companies
The Company utilizes a third-party financing company to provide certain clients with a rental option. Under these
arrangements, the Company receives payment up front from the financing companies and the financing companies collect the
client rental payments over the life of the rental agreement on a nonrecourse basis. The principal portion of these up-front
payments are reported as advances from financing companies in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet. Interest rates
applicable to the outstanding advances as of September 30, 2020 ranged from 2.47% to 8.75%.
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Client lease payments to third party financing companies will reduce the advances from financing companies as of September 30,
2020 by year as follows:
As of September 30,
2020

2021
2022
2023
2024

$

$

4,037
12,058
6,437
978
23,510

The Company indemnifies the financing companies for any loss or expenses resulting from its failure to provide the
ongoing necessary system services and support to the client. As of September 30, 2020 no events have occurred requiring
compensation pursuant to these indemnification clauses.
Note 13. Legal Matters
From time to time, Teladoc Health is involved in various litigation matters arising out of the normal course of business,
including the matters described below. The Company consults with legal counsel on those issues related to litigation and seek
input from other experts and advisors with respect to such matters. Estimating the probable losses or a range of probable losses
resulting from litigation, government actions and other legal proceedings is inherently difficult and requires an extensive degree
of judgment, particularly where the matters involve indeterminate claims for monetary damages, may involve discretionary
amounts, present novel legal theories, are in the early stages of the proceedings, or are subject to appeal. Whether any losses,
damages or remedies ultimately resulting from such matters could reasonably have a material effect on our business, financial
condition, results of operations, or cash flows will depend on a number of variables, including, for example, the timing and
amount of such losses or damages (if any) and the structure and type of any such remedies. Teladoc Health’s management does
not presently expect any litigation matter to have a material adverse impact on our business, financial condition, results of
operations or cash flows.
On December 12, 2018, a purported securities class action complaint (Reiner v. Teladoc Health, Inc., et.al.) was filed in
the United States District Court for the Southern District of New York (the “SDNY”) against the Company and certain of the
Company’s officers and a former officer. The complaint is brought on behalf of a purported class consisting of all persons or
entities who purchased or otherwise acquired shares of the Company’s common stock during the period March 3, 2016 through
December 5, 2019. The complaint asserts violations of Sections 10(b) and 20(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 based on
allegedly false or misleading statements and omissions with respect to, among other things, the alleged misconduct of one of the
Company’s previous Executive Officers. The complaint seeks certification as a class action and unspecified compensatory
damages plus interest and attorneys’ fees. The Company believes that the claims against the Company and its officers are without
merit, and the Company and its named officers intend to defend the Company vigorously, including filing a motion to dismiss the
complaint.
In addition, on June 21, 2019, a stockholder derivative lawsuit (Kreutter v. Gorevic, et al.) was filed in the SDNY
against certain current and former directors and officers of the Company. The derivative lawsuit alleges that the named directors
and officers breached their fiduciary duties to the Company in connection with factual assertions substantially similar to those in
the purported securities class action complaint described above. The Company believes that the claims set forth in this
stockholder derivative lawsuit are without merit.
On May 14, 2018, a purported class action complaint (Thomas v. Best Doctors, Inc.) was filed in the United States
District Court for the District of Massachusetts against the Company’s wholly owned subsidiary, Best Doctors, Inc. The
complaint alleges that on or about May 16, 2017, Best Doctors violated the U.S. Telephone Consumer Protection Act (TCPA) by
sending unsolicited facsimiles to plaintiff and certain other recipients without the recipients’ prior express invitation or
permission. The lawsuit seeks statutory damages for each violation, subject to trebling under the TCPA, and injunctive relief. The
Company will vigorously defend the lawsuit and any potential loss is currently deemed to be immaterial.
Several complaints have been filed to date in connection with the merger between Livongo and the Company. Three
purported class action complaints were filed under the captions: Kent v. Livongo Health, Inc., et al., Case No. 1:20-cv-01213 (D.
Del.); Raheja v. Livongo Health, Inc., et al., Case No. 5:20-cv-06406 (N.D. Cal.); and Hart v. Livongo Health, Inc., et al., Case
No. 1:20-cv-01222 (D. Del.). Seven additional complaints were filed by purported
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stockholders of Livongo under the captions: Kubus v. Livongo Health, Inc., et al., Case No. 1:20-cv-07579 (S.D.N.Y.); Jones v.
Livongo Health, Inc., et al., Case No. 1:20-cv-04362 (E.D.N.Y.); Anthony v. Livongo Health, Inc., et al., Case No. 1:20-cv-07706
(S.D.N.Y.); Banner v. Livongo Health, Inc., et al., Case No. 5:20-cv-06758 (N.D. Cal.); Vea v. Livongo Health, Inc., et al., Case
No. 1:20-cv-08230 (S.D.N.Y.); Ormesher v. Livongo Health Inc., et al., 5:20-cv-07105 (N.D. Cal.); and O’Connor v. Livongo
Health Inc., et al., Case No. 5:20-cv-07281 (N.D. Cal.) (collectively with the purported class action complaints, the “Merger
Litigations”). As of November 5, 2020, the Raheja, Kubus, and Banner complaints have been voluntarily dismissed with
prejudice.
The Merger Litigations generally name as defendants Livongo and the members of its board of directors. The Kent
complaint, Raheja complaint, and Hart complaint also assert claims against the Company and Tempranillo Merger Sub, Inc., a
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company. The Merger Litigations generally allege that the registration statement and/or the joint
proxy statement/prospectus filed in connection with the merger between Livongo and the Company omitted material information
in violation of Sections 14(a) and 20(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, rendering the statements false and misleading.
The Raheja complaint and the Kubus complaint also alleged that certain defendants breached their fiduciary duties in connection
with the merger. The Merger Litigations seek, among other things, an order enjoining the merger; rescinding the merger, to the
extent it closes, and recovering damages; and awarding costs, including attorneys’ fees and expenses. The Company believes that
the claims asserted are wholly without merit.
Note 14. Common Stock and Stockholders’ Equity
Capitalization
Effective May 31, 2018, the authorized number of shares of the Company’s common stock was increased from
100,000,000 to 150,000,000 shares.
Stock Plans and Stock Options
The Company’s 2015 Incentive Award Plan and 2017 Employment Inducement Incentive Award Plan (together, the
“Plans”) provide for the issuance of incentive and non-statutory options and other equity-based awards to its employees and nonemployees. Options issued under the Plans are exercisable for periods not to exceed ten years, and vest and contain such other
terms and conditions as specified in the applicable award document. Options to buy common stock are issued under the Plans,
with exercise prices equal to the closing price of shares of the Company’s common stock on the New York Stock Exchange on
the date of award. The Company had 7,824,286 shares available for grant at September 30, 2020.
Activity under the Plans is as follows (in thousands, except share and per share amounts and years):

Number of
Shares
Outstanding

Balance at December 31, 2019
Stock option grants
Stock options exercised
Stock options forfeited
Balance at September 30, 2020
Vested or expected to vest at September 30, 2020
Exercisable at September 30, 2020

5,206,980
344,413
(1,999,518)
(162,161)
3,389,714
3,389,714
2,610,779

WeightedAverage
Exercise
Price

$
$
$
$
$
$
$

24.47
32.60
20.49
33.14
27.58
27.58
22.18

WeightedAverage
Remaining
Contractual
Life in Years

7.03
N/A
N/A
N/A
6.34
6.34
6.19

Aggregate
Intrinsic
Value

$

308,538

$ (288,909)
$
$
$

649,682
649,682
514,480

The total grant-date fair value of stock options granted during the quarters ended September 30, 2020 and 2019 was
$10.7 million and $2.1 million, respectively. The total grant-date fair value of stock options granted during the nine months ended
September 30, 2020 and 2019 was $11.2 million and $4.7 million, respectively.
Stock-Based Compensation
All stock-based awards to employees are measured based on the grant-date fair value of the awards and are generally
recognized on a straight line basis in the Company’s consolidated statement of operations over the period during which the
employee is required to perform services in exchange for the award (generally requiring a four-year
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vesting period for each stock option and a three-year vesting period for each restricted stock unit (“RSU”)). The Company
estimates the fair value of stock options granted using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model.
The assumptions used in the Black-Scholes option-pricing model are determined as follows:
Volatility. Since the Company does not have a reliable trading history for the expected term for its common stock, the
expected volatility was derived from the historical stock volatilities of several unrelated public companies within its industry that
it considers to be comparable to its business combined with the Company’s stock volatility over a period equivalent to the
expected term of the stock option grants.
Risk-Free Interest Rate. The risk-free interest rate is based on U.S. Treasury zero-coupon issues with terms similar to
the expected term on the options.
Expected Term. The expected term represents the period that the stock-based awards are expected to be outstanding.
When establishing the expected term assumption, the Company utilizes historical data.
Dividend Yield. The Company has never declared or paid any cash dividends and does not plan to pay cash dividends in
the foreseeable future, and therefore, it used an expected dividend yield of zero.
Forfeiture rate. The Company recognizes forfeitures as they occur.
The fair value of each option grant was estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model
with the following assumptions and fair value per share:
Nine Months Ended September 30,
2020
2019

Volatility
Expected life (in years)
Risk-free interest rate
Dividend yield
Weighted-average fair value of underlying stock options

46.1% - 56.0%
4.1
0.27%-1.64%
0
$
49.21

46.8% – 47.6%
5.3
1.35% - 2.55%
0
$
29.21

For the quarter ended September 30, 2020 and 2019, the Company recorded compensation expense related to stock
options granted of $3.4 million and $4.6 million, respectively. For the nine months ended September 30, 2020 and 2019, the
Company recorded compensation expense related to stock options granted of $11.5 million and $15.3 million, respectively.
As of September 30, 2020, the Company had $15.1 million in unrecognized compensation cost related to non-vested
stock options, which is expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of approximately 1.9 years.
Restricted Stock Units
In May 2017, the Company commenced issuing RSUs to certain employees and Board members under the 2017
Employment Inducement Incentive Award Plan.
The fair value of the RSUs is determined on the date of grant. The Company will record compensation expense in the
consolidated statement of operations on a straight-line basis over the vesting period for RSUs. The vesting period for employees
and members of the Board of Directors ranges from one to four years.
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Activity under the RSUs is as follows:
RSUs

Balance at December 31, 2019
Granted
Vested and issued
Forfeited
Balance at September 30, 2020
Vested and unissued at September 30, 2020
Non-vested at September 30, 2020

1,483,558
400,894
(615,123)
(97,771)
1,171,558
13,755
1,157,803

Weighted-Average
Grant Date
Fair Value Per RSU

$
$
$
$
$
$
$

54.13
137.01
52.33
58.48
58.82
50.90
58.91

The total grant-date fair value of RSU’s granted during the quarter ended September 30, 2020 and 2019 were $11.9
million and $3.3 million, respectively. The total grant-date fair value of RSUs granted during the nine months ended September
30, 2020 and 2019 were $54.9 million and $86.7 million, respectively.
For the quarter ended September 30, 2020 and 2019, the Company recorded stock-based compensation expense related
to the RSU’s of $11.3 million and $12.5 million, respectively. For the nine months ended September 30, 2020 and 2019, the
Company recorded stock-based compensation expense related to the RSUs of $32.0 million and $32.2 million, respectively.
As of September 30, 2020, the Company had $72.9 million in unrecognized compensation cost related to non-vested
RSUs, which is expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of approximately 2.1 years.
Performance Stock Units
The Company began issuing grants Performance Stock Units (“PSUs”) to employees under the Plan in 2018. Stock-based
compensation costs associated with our PSUs are initially determined using the fair market value of the Company's common
stock on the date the awards are approved by the Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors (service inception date).
The vesting of these PSU is subject to certain performance conditions and a service requirement ranging from 1-3 years. Until the
performance conditions are met, stock compensation costs associated with these PSU reflect the estimated performance
attainment on the reporting date. The ultimate number of PSUs that are issued to an employee is the result of the actual
performance of the Company at the end of the performance period compared to the performance conditions and can range from
50% to 200% of the initial grant. Stock compensation expense for PSUs is recognized on an accelerated tranche by tranche basis
for performance-based awards. Forfeitures are accounted for at the time the occur consistent with Company policy.
Activity under the PSU is as follows:

Shares

Balance at December 31, 2019
Granted
Vested and issued
Balance at September 30, 2020
Vested and unissued at September 30, 2020
Non-vested at September 30, 2020

512,482
111,199
(186,455)
437,226
0
437,226

Weighted-Average
Grant Date
Fair Value Per Share

$
$
$
$
$
$

62.51
117.81
62.02
76.78
0
76.78

No PSUs were granted during the quarter ended September 30, 2020 and 2019. The total grant-date fair value of PSU’s
granted during the nine months ended September 30, 2020 and 2019 were $13.1 million and $28.5 million, respectively
For the quarter ended September 30, 2020 and 2019, the Company recorded stock-based compensation expense related
to the PSU of $5.9 million and $4.2 million, respectively. For the nine months ended September 30, 2020 and 2019, the Company
recorded stock-based compensation expense related to the PSUs of $16.8 million and $11.0 million, respectively.
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As of September 30, 2020, the Company had $20.9 million in unrecognized compensation cost related to non-vested
PSU, which is expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of approximately 1.7 years.
Employee Stock Purchase Plan
In July 2015, the Company adopted the 2015 Employee Stock Purchase Plan, or ESPP, in connection with its initial
public offering. A total of 832,492 shares of common stock were reserved for issuance under this plan as of September 30, 2020.
The Company’s ESPP permits eligible employees to purchase common stock at a discount through payroll deductions during
defined offering periods. Under the ESPP, the Company may specify offerings with durations of not more than 27 months and
may specify shorter purchase periods within each offering. Each offering will have one or more purchase dates on which shares
of its common stock will be purchased for employees participating in the offering. An offering may be terminated under certain
circumstances. The price at which the stock is purchased is equal to the lower of 85% of the fair market value of the common
stock at the beginning of an offering period or on the date of purchase.
During the quarter September 30, 2020, the Company had not issued any shares under the ESPP. During the nine
months ended September 30, 2020 and 2019, the Company issued 35,901 shares and 35,716 shares, respectively, under the ESPP.
As of September 30, 2020, 519,366 shares remained available for issuance.
For the quarter ended September 30, 2020 and 2019, the Company recorded stock-based compensation expense related
to the ESPP of $0.6 million and $0.2 million, respectively. For the nine months ended September 30, 2020 and 2019, the
Company recorded stock-based compensation expense related to the ESPP of $1.4 million and $0.7 million, respectively.
As of September 30, 2020, the Company had $0.3 million in unrecognized compensation cost related to the ESPP,
which is expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of approximately 0.1 years.
Total compensation costs charged as an expense for stock-based awards, including stock options, RSUs, PSUs and
ESPP, recognized in the components of operating expenses are as follows (in thousands):
Quarter Ended
September 30,
2020
2019
Cost of revenue (exclusive of depreciation and amortization shown separately)

Advertising and marketing
Sales
Technology and development
General and administrative
Total stock-based compensation expense

$

128
1,644
3,275
2,622
13,239
$ 20,908

$

0
1,384
2,732
1,594
11,644
$ 17,354

Nine Months Ended
September 30,
2020
2019

$

128
4,447
9,465
7,285
39,826
$ 61,151

$

0
3,522
7,390
5,633
31,700
$ 48,245

Note 15. Income Taxes
As a result of the Company’s history of net operating losses (“NOL”), the Company has provided for a full valuation
allowance against its deferred tax assets for assets that are not more-likely-than-not to be realized. For the quarter and nine
months ended September 30, 2020, the Company recognized an income tax benefit of $(2.3) million and $(5.4) million,
respectively, primarily due to the reduction of an uncertain tax benefit reserve, as well as the amortization of acquired intangibles
and stock compensation deductions. The expiration of the statute of limitations for an uncertain tax position occurred in this
quarter, resulting in a $(2.0) million tax benefit.
For the quarter and nine months ended September 30, 2019, the Company recognized an income tax benefit of $(7.3)
million and $(6.5) million, respectively, primarily related to the partial valuation allowance release due to the anticipated
intercompany transfer of a U.S. subsidiary from a foreign owned subsidiary to the U.S. parent which was executed the following
quarter.
Beginning with the quarter ended March 31, 2018, the Company is calculating tax expense based on the U.S. statutory
rate of 21%. The US Federal tax law includes a Base Erosion Anti-Abuse Tax, commonly referred to as BEAT, which imposes a
minimum tax on certain deductible payments or accruals made to foreign affiliates in tax years beginning after December 31,
2017. The Company has determined that it is currently not subject to BEAT. US Federal tax law imposes a minimum tax on
global intangible low-taxed income, commonly referred to as GILTI. The Company does not expect to recognize any tax expense
related to GILTI as it has net operating losses available and a full valuation
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allowance. In addition, US Tax law imposes an interest expense limitation which disallows a portion of the interest deduction
based on EBITDA. While the disallowed interest deduction is deferred, there is no impact to tax expense due to the current year
taxable loss and related valuation allowance.
Note 16. Subsequent Event
The closing of the merger with Livongo occurred on October 30, 2020. Upon completion of the merger, each share of
Livongo’s common stock converted into the right to receive 0.5920 shares of Teladoc Health’s common stock and $4.24 in cash,
without interest. In addition, in connection with the closing of the merger, Livongo paid a special cash dividend equal to $7.09
per share of Livongo’s common stock to shareholders of Livongo as of a record date of October 29, 2020. The total consideration
received by Livongo shareholders from the Company was $12,846.3 million consisting of $432.9 million of cash and 60.4
million shares of Teladoc Health’s common stock valued at approximately $12,413.4 million on October 30, 2020.
On the closing date of the merger, Teladoc Health guaranteed $550.0 million aggregate principal amount of 0.875%
Convertible Senior Notes due 2025 (the “Livongo Notes”) issued by Livongo, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Teladoc Health
following the merger. The guarantee is an unsecured obligation of Teladoc Health, ranks equally with all of its other unsecured
and unsubordinated indebtedness and is full and unconditional. See Livongo’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on October 28,
2020 for financial information regarding Livongo as of September 30, 2020 and for the three and nine months ended September
30, 2020 and Livongo’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter and six months ended June 30, 2020 for information
regarding the terms of the Livongo Notes.
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Item 2. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations
Special Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements
This Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q contains forward-looking statements within the meaning of the Private Securities
Litigation Reform Act of 1995 that involve risks and uncertainties. All statements other than statements of historical fact are, or
may be, forward-looking statements. These forward-looking statements are not historical facts, but rather are based on current
expectations, estimate, assumptions and projections about our industry, business and future financial results. We use words such
as “anticipates”, “believes”, “suggests”, “targets”, “projects”, “plans”, “expects”, “future”, “intends”, “estimates”, “predicts”,
“potential”, “may”, “will”, “should”, “could”, “would”, “likely”, “foresee”, “forecast”, “continue” and other similar words or
phrases, as well as statements in the future tense to identify these forward-looking statements.
Forward-looking statements involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other important factors that may cause
our actual results, performance or achievements to be different from any future results, performance and achievements expressed
or implied by these statements. Our actual results could differ materially from the results contemplated by these forward-looking
statements due to a number of important factors, including those set forth below.
●

ongoing legal challenges to or new state actions against our business model;

●

our dependence on our relationships with affiliated professional entities;

●

evolving government regulations and our ability to stay abreast of new or modified laws and regulations that
currently apply or become applicable to our business;

●

our ability to operate in the heavily regulated healthcare industry;

●

our history of net losses and accumulated deficit;

●

failures of our cyber-security measures that expose the confidential information of our Clients and Members;

●

risk of the loss of any of our significant Clients;

●

risks associated with a decrease in the number of individuals offered benefits by our Clients or the number of
products and services to which they subscribe;

●

our ability to establish and maintain strategic relationships with third parties;

●

risks specifically related to our ability to operate in competitive international markets and comply with complex
non-U.S. legal requirements;

●

our ability to recruit and retain a network of qualified Providers;

●

risk that the insurance we maintain may not fully cover all potential exposures;

●

rapid technological change in the telehealth market;

●

our ability to integrate acquired businesses and achieve fully the strategic and financial objectives related thereto
and its impact on our financial condition and results of operations;

●

our level of indebtedness and our ability to fund debt obligations and comply with covenants in our debt
instruments;

●

risks associated with potential disruptions to our business caused by the COVID-19 pandemic;

●

difficulties integrating the Livongo Health, Inc. business and realizing the anticipated synergies and other benefits
of the combined company;
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●

risks that the business uncertainties arising from the merger with Livongo Health, Inc. could adversely affect our
business and operations;

●

any statements of belief and any statements of assumptions underlying any of the foregoing;

●

other factors disclosed in this Form 10-Q; and

●

other factors beyond our control.

The foregoing list of factors is not exhaustive and does not necessarily include all of the important factors that could
cause actual results to differ materially from those expressed in any of our forward-looking statements. The information in this
Quarterly Report should be read carefully in conjunction with other uncertainties and potential events described in our Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2019 filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”)
and our other filings with the SEC. The forward-looking statements included in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q are made
only as of the date of this Quarterly Report. Except as required by law or regulation, we do not undertake any obligation to update
any forward-looking statements to reflect subsequent events or circumstances.
Overview
Teladoc, Inc. was incorporated in the State of Texas in June 2002 and changed its state of incorporation to the State of
Delaware in October 2008. Effective August 10, 2019, Teladoc, Inc. changed its corporate name to Teladoc Health, Inc. from
Teladoc, Inc. Unless the context otherwise requires, Teladoc Health, Inc., together with its subsidiaries, is referred to herein as
“Teladoc Health” or the “Company”. The Company’s principal executive office is located in Purchase, New York. Teladoc
Health is the global leader in providing virtual healthcare services with a focus on high quality, lower costs, and improved
outcomes around the world.
Teladoc Health solutions are transforming the access, cost and quality dynamics of healthcare delivery for all of our
market participants. Members rely on Teladoc Health to remotely access affordable, on-demand healthcare whenever and
wherever they choose. Employers, health plans and health systems, or our Clients, as well as our direct-to-consumer members
purchase our solutions to reduce their healthcare spending and offer convenient, affordable, high-quality healthcare to their
employees or beneficiaries. Our network of physicians and other healthcare professionals, or our Providers have the ability to
generate meaningful income and deliver their services more efficiently with no administrative burden.
Livongo Merger
On August 5, 2020, Teladoc Health entered into an Agreement and Plan of Merger (the “Merger Agreement”) with
Livongo Health, Inc., a Delaware corporation (“Livongo”), and Tempranillo Merger Sub, Inc., a Delaware corporation and a
newly formed, direct wholly owned subsidiary of Teladoc Health (“Merger Sub”), pursuant to which Merger Sub would merge
with and into Livongo, with Livongo continuing as the surviving corporation and a direct wholly owned subsidiary of Teladoc
Health.
The closing of the merger occurred on October 30, 2020. Upon completion of the merger, each share of Livongo’s
common stock converted into the right to receive 0.5920 shares of Teladoc Health’s common stock and $4.24 in cash, without
interest. In addition, in connection with the closing of the merger, Livongo paid a special cash dividend equal to $7.09 per share
of Livongo’s common stock to shareholders of Livongo as of a record date of October 29, 2020. For more information, see Note
16, “Subsequent Event” of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q.
Revenue
We have a demonstrated track record of driving growth both organically and through acquisitions. We increased
revenue 109% to $288.8 million for the quarter ended September 30, 2020, which was largely organic growth and including
$24.9 million from our recent InTouch acquisition. The increase in revenue includes significant surge in demand for our services
associated with the global outbreak of COVID-19. We increased revenue 79% to $710.6 million for the nine months ended
September 30, 2020, which was largely organic growth and including $26.1 million from our InTouch acquisition and the 2019
MedicinDirect acquisition.
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For the quarter ended September 30,2020 78%, 18% and 4% of our revenue was derived from access fees, visit
fees and other revenue, respectively and for the nine months ended September 30, 2020, 77%, 22% and 1% of our revenue
was derived from access fees, visit fees and other revenue, respectively. For the quarter ended September 30, 2019, 86% and
14% of our revenue was derived from access fees and visit fees, respectively and for the nine months ended September 30,
2019, 85% and 15% of our revenue were derived from access fees and visit fees, respectively. The increased percentage of
visit related revenue in 2020 is a result of the COVID-19 pandemic. Other revenue primarily comprise of revenue from
sales and rental of equipments as a result of our acquisition of InTouch. Additionally, we believe our continued strong
subscription fee revenue is mainly representative of the value proposition we provide the broader U.S. healthcare system.
Membership, Visits and Platform Enabled Sessions
We completed approximately 7.6 million telehealth visits in the first nine months of 2020 and approximately 4.1 million
telehealth visits for the full year of 2019. Paid Membership increased by approximately 14.8 million Members to 51.5 million
from December 31, 2019 through September 30, 2020. We also completed approximately 986,000 platform enabled sessions in
the quarter ending September 30, 2020 associated with InTouch.
Acquisition History
We have scaled and intend to continue to scale our platform through the pursuit of selective acquisitions. We have
completed multiple acquisitions since our inception, which we believe have expanded the channels that we serve and our
distribution capabilities as well as broadening our service offerings.
On July 1, 2020, the Company completed the acquisition of InTouch Technologies, Inc. (“InTouch”) and InTouch
became a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. The aggregate merger consideration paid was $1,079.5 million, net of cash
acquired of $1.1 million, which was comprised of 4.6 million shares of Teladoc’s common stock valued at $918.8 million on July
1, 2020, and $160.7 million of cash. InTouch is the leading provider of enterprise telehealth solutions for hospitals and health
systems.
On April 30, 2019, the Company completed the acquisition of the Paris-based telemedicine provider MedecinDirect in
which MedecinDirect became a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. The aggregate merger consideration paid was $11.2
million with additional potential earnout consideration. On June 19, 2019, the Company made a $5.0 million minority investment
in Vida Health which is accounted for under the cost method for investments.
Additionally, on August 5, 2020, we announced that we had entered into a definitive merger agreement with Livongo
which represents a transformational opportunity to improve the delivery, access and experience of healthcare for consumers
around the world. The merger closed on October 30, 2020. For more information, see Note 16, “Subsequent Event” of the Notes
to the Consolidated Financial Statements of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q.
Key Factors Affecting Our Performance
Number of Members. Our revenue growth rate and long-term profitability are affected by our ability to increase our
number of Members because we derive a substantial portion of our revenue from access fees via Client contracts that provide
Members access to our professional provider network in exchange for a contractual based monthly fee. Membership increased by
approximately 14.8 million Members to 51.5 million from December 31, 2019 through September 30, 2020.
Number of Visits. We also recognize revenue in connection with the completion of a general medical visit, expert
medical service and other specialty visits for certain of our contracts. Accordingly, our visit revenue, or visit fees, generally
increase as the number of visits increase. Visit fee revenue is driven primarily by the number of Clients, the number of Members
in a Client’s population, Member utilization of our provider network services and the contractually negotiated prices of our
services. We believe that increasing our current Member utilization rate and increasing penetration further into existing and new
health plan Clients is a key objective in order for our Clients to realize tangible healthcare savings with our service. Visits
increased by 206% or 1.9 million to approximately 2.8 million for the quarter ended September 30, 2020 compared to the same
period in 2019. The increase in visits is reflective of our ability to secure new clients as well as the surge in demand for our
services associated with COVID-19. Visits increased by 164%

30

Table of Contents

or 4.7 million to approximately 7.6 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2020 compared to the same period in 2019.
Number Platform Enabled of Sessions. A platform enabled session is a unique instance in which our licensed software
platform has facilitated a virtual voice or video encounter between a care provider and our client’s patient, or between care
providers. We believe platform enabled sessions are an indicator of the value our clients derive from the platform they license
from us in order to facilitate virtual care. Over time, we expect platform enabled sessions to outpace overall revenue growth as
telehealth becomes a bigger part of our clients’ care delivery strategy. 986,000 platform enabled sessions were completed for the
quarter ended September 30, 2020 associated with InTouch.
Seasonality. We typically experience the strongest increases in consecutive quarterly revenue during the fourth and first
quarters of each year, which coincides with traditional annual benefit enrollment seasons. In particular, as a result of many
Clients’ introduction of new services at the very end of the current year, or the start of each year, the majority of our new Client
contracts have an effective date of January 1. Therefore, while Membership increases, utilization is dampened until service
delivery ramps up over the course of the year. Our business also has become more diversified across services, channels and
geographies. As a result, we have seen a diversification of client start dates, resulting from our health plan expansions, cross sales
of new services, international growth, and mid-market employer growth, all of which are not constrained by a calendar year start.
As a result of national seasonal cold and flu trends, we typically experience our highest level of visit fees during the first
and fourth quarters of each year when compared to other quarters of the year. Conversely, the second quarter of the year has
historically been the period of lowest utilization of our provider network services relative to the other quarters of the year. We
experienced a surge in demand for our services in March of 2020 associated with the COVID-19 global pandemic that continued
during the quarter-end September 30, 2020 and as a result we anticipate that this will alter our historical seasonal utilization
trends during 2020. See “Risk Factors—Risks Related to Our Business—Our quarterly results may fluctuate significantly, which
could adversely impact the value of our common stock.” included in our Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2019 filed
with the SEC.
Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates
Our discussion and analysis of our results of operations, liquidity and capital resources are based on our condensed
consolidated financial statements which have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America (“U.S. GAAP”). The preparation of these condensed consolidated financial statements requires us to
make estimates and judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses, and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities. On an ongoing basis, we evaluate our estimates and judgments, including those related to
revenue recognition, accounts receivable, inventories, accounting for business combinations, goodwill, intangible assets, longlived assets, capitalized development costs, earnout, rental equipment, advances from financing companies, income taxes, lease
liabilities, loss contingencies and the value of securities underlying stock-based compensation. We base our estimates on
historical and anticipated results and trends and on various other assumptions that we believe are reasonable under the
circumstances, including assumptions as to future events. These estimates form the basis for making judgments about the
carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. By their nature, estimates are subject to
an inherent degree of uncertainty. Actual results may differ from our estimates and could have a significant adverse effect on our
results of operations and financial position. For a discussion of our critical accounting policies and estimates see Part II, Item 7,
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” in our Annual Report and there have
been no material changes to our critical accounting policies during 2020 other than those as discussed in Note 2, “Summary of
Significant Accounting Policies” of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q.
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Consolidated Results of Operations
The following table sets forth our consolidated statement of operations data for the quarters ended September 30, 2020
and 2019 and the dollar and percentage change between the respective periods:
2020
$

Revenue
Expenses:
Cost of revenue (exclusive of
depreciation and
amortization shown
separately below)
Operating expenses:
Advertising and marketing
Sales
Technology and
development
Legal and regulatory
Acquisition and integration
related costs
General and administrative
Depreciation and
amortization
Total expenses
Loss from operations
Loss on extinguishment of
debt
Interest expense, net
Net loss before taxes
Income tax (benefit) expense
Net loss

Quarter Ended September 30,
2019
$
Variance

Nine Months Ended September 30,
2020
2019
$
$
Variance
%(a)

%

$ 288,812

$ 137,969

$ 150,843

109 %

$ 710,641

$ 396,818

104,725

42,799

61,926

145 %

267,887

52,302
23,483

31,321
16,120

20,981
7,363

67 %
46 %

29,958
2,812

15,746
1,634

14,212
1,178

25,395
56,930

1,995
38,681

12,932
308,537
(19,725)

9,617
157,913
(19,944)

1,227
0
17,222
7,700
(38,174)
(27,644)
(2,290)
(7,298)
$ (35,884) $ (20,346) $

313,823

79 %

129,110

138,777

107 %

132,395
60,110

84,341
48,164

48,054
11,946

57 %
25 %

90 %
72 %

72,244
6,266

48,398
5,239

23,846
1,027

49 %
20 %

23,400
18,249

N/M %
47 %

30,686
156,433

4,143
113,212

26,543
43,221

N/M %
38 %

3,315
150,624
219

34 %
95 %
(1)%

32,535
758,556
(47,915)

29,065
461,672
(64,854)

3,470
296,884
16,939

12 %
64 %
(26)%

8,978
18,244
(10,283)
1,066
(11,349)

N/M %
85 %
12 %
(16)%
14 %

1,227 N/M %
9,522
124 %
(10,530)
38 %
5,008
(69)%
(15,538)
76 %

$

8,978
0
39,676
21,432
(96,569)
(86,286)
(5,400)
(6,466)
$ (91,169) $ (79,820) $

EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA
The following table reconciles net loss to EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA for the quarters and nine months ended
September 30, 2020 and 2019:
Quarter Ended
September 30,
2020
2019

Net loss
Add:
Loss on extinguishment of debt
Interest expense, net
Income tax benefit
Depreciation expense
Amortization expense
EBITDA(1)
Stock-based compensation
Acquisition and integration related costs
Adjusted EBITDA(1)

Nine Months Ended
September 30,
2020
2019

$ (35,884) $ (20,346) $ (91,169) $ (79,820)

$

1,227
0
8,978
0
17,222
7,700
39,676
21,432
(2,290)
(7,298)
(5,400)
(6,466)
1,272
982
2,983
2,701
11,660
8,635
29,552
26,364
(6,793)
(10,327)
(15,380)
(35,789)
20,908
17,354
61,151
48,245
25,395
1,995
30,686
4,143
39,510 $
9,022 $ 76,457 $ 16,599

(1) Non-GAAP Financial Measures:
To supplement our financial information presented in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in the
United States, or U.S. GAAP, we use EBITDA income (loss) and Adjusted EBITDA income (loss), which are
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non-U.S. GAAP financial measures to clarify and enhance an understanding of past performance. We believe that the
presentation of these financial measures enhances an investor’s understanding of our financial performance. We further believe
that these financial measures are useful financial metrics to assess our operating performance from period-to-period by excluding
certain items that we believe are not representative of our core business. We use certain financial measures for business planning
purposes and in measuring our performance relative to that of our competitors. We utilize Adjusted EBITDA as the primary
measure of our performance.
EBITDA consists of net loss before interest, foreign exchange gain or loss, taxes, loss on extinguishment of debt,
depreciation and amortization. We believe that making such adjustment provides investors meaningful information to understand
our results of operations and the ability to analyze financial and business trends on a period-to-period basis.
Adjusted EBITDA consists of net loss before interest, foreign exchange gain or loss, taxes, loss on extinguishment of
debt, depreciation, amortization, stock-based compensation, and acquisition and integration related costs. We believe that making
such adjustment provides investors meaningful information to understand our results of operations and the ability to analyze
financial and business trends on a period-to-period basis.
We believe both financial measures are commonly used by investors to evaluate our performance and that of our
competitors. However, our use of the term EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA may vary from that of others in our industry. Neither
EBITDA nor Adjusted EBITDA should be considered as an alternative to net loss before taxes, net loss, loss per share or any
other performance measures derived in accordance with U.S. GAAP as measures of performance.
EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA have important limitations as analytical tools and you should not consider them in
isolation or as a substitute for analysis of our results as reported under U.S. GAAP. Some of these limitations are:
●

EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA do not reflect the significant interest expense on our debt

●

EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA eliminate the impact of income taxes on our results of operations;

●

EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA do not reflect the loss on extinguishment of debt;

●

Adjusted EBITDA does not reflect the significant acquisition and integration related costs related to mergers and
acquisitions;

●

Adjusted EBITDA does not reflect the significant non-cash stock compensation expense which should be viewed as
a component of recurring operating costs; and

●

other companies in our industry may calculate EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA differently than we do, limiting the
usefulness of EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA as comparative measures.

In addition, although depreciation and amortization are non-cash charges, the assets being depreciated and amortized
will often have to be replaced in the future, and both EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA do not reflect any expenditures for such
replacements.
We compensate for these limitations by using EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA along with other comparative tools,
together with U.S. GAAP measurements, to assist in the evaluation of operating performance. Such U.S. GAAP measurements
include net loss, net loss per share and other performance measures.
In evaluating these financial measures, you should be aware that in the future we may incur expenses similar to those
eliminated in this presentation. Our presentation of EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA should not be construed as an inference that
our future results will be unaffected by unusual or nonrecurring items.
Consolidated Results of Operations Discussion
We completed our acquisitions of InTouch on July 1, 2020 and MedecinDirect on April 30, 2019. The results of
operations of the aforementioned acquisitions have been included in our unaudited consolidated financial statements included in
this Quarterly Report from the date of each acquisition.
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Revenue. Total revenue was $ 288.8 million for the quarter ended September 30, 2020 , compared to $138.0 million
during the quarter ended September 30, 2019, an increase of $150.8 million, or 109%, with organic growth reflecting
approximately a 90% increase. Total revenue was $710.6 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2020, compared to
$396.8 million during the quarter ended September 30, 2019, an increase of $313.8 million, or 79%, with organic growth
reflecting a 73% increase. The primary increase for both the quarter and nine months ended 2020 was substantially driven by an
increase in new Clients and the number of new Members generating additional access fees and an increase in volume associated
with the COVID-19 pandemic as well as the acquisition of InTouch which contributed $24.9 million for both the quarter and nine
months ended September 30, 2020. Access fee revenue increased to $226.6 million, or 90% for the quarter ended September 30,
2020 . Access fee revenue increased to $545.8 million, or 62% for the nine months ended September 30, 2020. The increase in
access fees was due to the addition of new Clients and direct-to-consumer members, as the number of paid Members increased by
47% from September 30, 2019 to September 30, 2020. Revenue from U.S. access fees was $194.6 million for the quarter ended
September 30, 2020 compared to $92.1 million for the quarter ended September 30, 2019 and was $454.6 million for the nine
months ended September 30, 2020 compared to $258.6 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2019. We generated
$32.0 million of international access fees for the quarter ended September 30, 2020 and $27.0 million for the quarter ended
September 30, 2019 and $91.3 million of international access fees for the nine months ended September 30, 2020 and $77.7
million for the nine months ended September 30, 2019, which includes contributions from the MedecinDirect acquisition.
We completed approximately 2.8 million visits, representing $51.0 million of visit fees for the quarter ended September
30, 2020, compared to approximately 0.9 million visits, representing $18.8 million of visit fees, for the quarter ended September
30, 2019, an increase of $32.2 million, or 171%. The increase in visit fees is associated with the aforementioned increase in paid
Members as well as the impact of COVID-19. We completed approximately 7.6 million visits, representing $153.6 million of
visit fees for the nine months ended September 30, 2020, compared to approximately 2.9 million visits, representing
$60.5 million of visit fees during the nine months ended September 30, 2019, an increase of $93.1 million, or 154%.
Other revenue was $11.1 million for the quarter and it was primarily comprised of sales and rental equipment associated
with the recent InTouch acquisition.
Cost of Revenue (exclusive of depreciation and amortization shown separately below). Cost of revenue was
$104.7 million for the quarter ended September 30, 2020 compared to $42.8 million for the quarter ended September 30, 2019, an
increase of $61.9 million, or 145%. Cost of revenue was $267.9 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2020 compared
to $129.1 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2019, an increase of $138.8 million, or 107%. These increases were
primarily due to increased general medical visits and behavioral health visits resulting in increased provider fees, additional
incentive fees paid to physicians and physician network operation center costs to service the aforementioned increases in revenue
and the additional $10.1 million in costs associated with InTouch for both the quarter and nine months ended September 30,
2019. Cost of revenue also includes costs associated with virtual healthcare devices consisting of materials, labor, and shipping
charges as well as depreciation of rental equipment for InTouch. The cost of revenue includes additional investments in capacity
expansion associated with the global outbreak of COVID-19 of $0.7 million and $6.9 million for the quarter and nine months
ended September 30, 2020, respectively.
Advertising and Marketing Expenses. Advertising and marketing expenses were $52.3 million for the quarter ended
September 30, 2020 compared to $31.3 million for the quarter ended September 30, 2019, an increase of $21.0 million, or 67%.
Including the impact from InTouch, this increase primarily consisted of increased digital advertising, member engagement and
acquisition initiatives, and sponsorship of professional organizations of $17.0 million and increases in employee-related expenses
and others of $4.0 million. Advertising and marketing expenses were $132.4 million for the nine months ended September 30,
2020 compared to $84.3 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2019, an increase of $48.1 million, or 57%. Including
the impact from InTouch, this increase primarily consisted of increased digital advertising, member engagement initiatives,
sponsorship of professional organizations of $41.4 million, as well as increased employee-related expenses of $6.7 million.
Sales Expenses. Sales expenses were $23.4 million for the quarter ended September 30, 2020 compared to $16.1 million
for the quarter ended September 30, 2019, an increase of $7.3 million, or 45%. Including the impact from InTouch, this increase
primarily consisted of increased staffing and sales commissions of $7.3 million. Sales expenses were $60.0 million for the nine
months ended September 30, 2020 compared to $48.1 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2019, an increase of
$11.9 million, or 25%. Including the impact from InTouch, this increase primarily
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consisted of increased staffing and sales commissions of $13.9 million offset by a decrease to other sales expenses of $2.0 million
Technology and Development Expenses. Technology and development expenses were $29.9 million for the quarter
ended September 30, 2020 compared to $15.7 million for the quarter ended September 30, 2019, an increase of $14.2 million, or
90%. Including the impact from InTouch, this increase resulted primarily from hiring additional personnel totaling $7.9 million
and other professional expenses of $6.3 million. Technology and development expenses were $72.2 million for the nine months
ended September 30, 2020 compared to $48.4 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2019, an increase of
$23.8 million, or 49%. Including the impact from InTouch, this increase resulted primarily from hiring additional personnel
totaling $13.8 million and increases in other expenses of $10.0 million.
Legal and Regulatory Expenses. Legal and regulatory expenses were $2.8 million for the quarter ended September 30,
2020 and increased when compared to $1.6 million for the quarter ended September 30, 2019, an increase of $1.2 million. This
increase resulted primarily from increased expenses to support litigation activities. Legal and regulatory expenses were
$6.2 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2020 and consistent when compared to $5.2 million for the nine months
ended September 30, 2019, a decrease of $1.0 million. This decrease was primarily driven by the timing of costs associated with
litigation activities.
Acquisition and Integration Related Costs. Acquisition and integration related costs, incurred primarily in connection
with integration activities of prior acquisitions as well as costs associated with the recent InTouch acquisiton and pending
Livongo acquisition was $25.4 million for the quarter ended September 30, 2020 compared to $2.0 million for the quarter ended
September 30, 2019, an increase of $23.4 million. Acquisition and integration related costs, incurred in connection with these
acquisitions, were $30.7 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2020 compared to $4.1 million for the nine months
ended September 30, 2019, an increase of $26.6 million. The 2020 and 2019 acquisition and integration related costs represent
investment banking, financing, legal, accounting, consultancy, integration, fair value changes related to contingent consideration
and certain other non-recurring transaction costs related to mergers and acquisitions.
General and Administrative Expenses. General and administrative expenses were $56.8 million for the quarter ended
September 30, 2020 compared to $38.9 million for the quarter ended September 30, 2019, an increase of $18.1 million, or 47%.
This increase was driven primarily by an increase in employee-related expenses of approximately $7.4 million resulting from
growth in total employee headcount to 3,276 at September 30, 2020 as compared to 2,386 employees at September 30, 2019
reflecting increased employee costs including to support the increase volume of activities due to COVID-19 and the impact from
InTouch. Other expenses, such as office-related charges, professional fees and bank charges, increased by $10.7 million for the
quarter ended September 30, 2020 as compared to September 30, 2019. General and administrative expenses were $156.3 million
for the nine months ended September 30, 2020 compared to $113.4 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2019, an
increase of $43.1 million, or 38%. This increase was driven primarily by an increase in employee-related expenses of
approximately $19.2 million resulting from growth in total employee headcount including to support the increase volume of
activities due to COVID-19 and the impact from InTouch. Other expenses, which include office-related charges, professional fees
and bank charges, increased by $23.9 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2020 as compared to the nine months
ended September 30, 2019, to support the growth of our business.
Depreciation and Amortization. Depreciation and amortization were $12.9 million for the quarter ended September 30,
2020 and consistent when compared to $9.6 million for the quarter ended September 30, 2019, an increase of $3.3 million or
34%. Depreciation and amortization was $32.5 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2020 and consistent when
compared to $29.0 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2019, an increase of $3.5 million, or 12%. Additional
amortization expenses primarily related to an increase in acquisition-related intangible assets that increased from $313.3 million
at September 30, 2019 to $511.9 million at September 30, 2020 and an increase of depreciation expense on an increased base of
depreciable fixed assets that increased from $24.9 million at September 30, 2019 to $31.9 million at September 30, 2020.
Interest Expense, Net. Interest expense, net consists of interest costs and amortization of debt discount associated with
our Convertible Senior Notes, interest income from short-term investments in marketable securities and foreign exchange gain or
loss. Interest expense, net was $17.2 million for the quarter ended September 30, 2020 compared to $7.7 million for the quarter
ended September 30, 2019. Interest expense, net was $39.7 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2020 compared to
$21.4 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2019. The Company increased its Convertible Senior Notes outstanding
to approximately $1,324.3 million at September 30, 2020
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from approximately $562.0 million at September 30, 2019. These increases in net interest expense in 2020 reflects the higher
outstanding debt, interest expense accretion associated with our Convertible Senior Notes and, lower interest income from shortterm investments, as well as a higher foreign exchange loss. In conjunction with the issuance of Convertible Senior Notes in May
2020, the Company also exchanged approximately $9.9 million and $228.2 million of existing outstanding Convertible Senior
Notes that were to mature in 2025 and 2022, respectively and recorded a charge associated with the loss on extinguishment of
$1.1 million and $8.8 million during the quarter and nine months ended September 30, 2020, respectively.
Income tax (benefit) expense. Income tax benefit was $(2.3) million for the quarter ended September 30, 2020
compared to an income tax benefit $(7.3) million for the quarter ended September 30, 2019. The reduction is primarily due to the
$(8.1) million reduction of a valuation allowance due to an intercompany transfer which was recorded in the quarter ended
September 30, 2019 versus a $(2.0) million reduction of an uncertain tax benefit reserve which occurred in the quarter ended
September 30, 2020. Income tax benefit was $(5.4) million for the nine months ended September 30, 2020 compared to an
income tax benefit $(6.5) million for the nine months ended September 30, 2019. The reduction is primarily reflective of
increased excess stock compensation benefits in the first nine months of 2020, as well as the reduction of a uncertain tax benefit
reserve, offset by the reduction in valuation allowance which was recorded in the first nine months of 2019.
Liquidity and Capital Resources
The following table presents a summary of our cash flow activity for the periods set forth below:
Nine Months Ended
September 30,
2020
2019

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows Data
Net cash provided by operating activities
Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities
Net cash provided by financing activities
Total

$

61,425
(177,050)
788,700
$ 673,075

$
$

11,747
15,466
25,053
52,266

Historically, we have financed our operations primarily through public and private sales of equity securities, debt
issuance and bank borrowings.
Our principal sources of liquidity are cash and cash equivalents totaling $1,187.3 million as of September 30, 2020,
which were held for working capital, acquisition and investment activity purposes. Our cash and cash equivalents are comprised
of money market funds and marketable securities. Additionally, we have short term marketable securities of $3.1 million as of
September 30, 2020.
On July 1, 2020, we completed the acquisition of InTouch. The purchase price was $1,079.5 million, net of cash
acquired of $1.1 million, consisting of $160.7 million of cash, and 4.6 million shares of Teladoc’s common stock valued at
$918.8 million on July 1, 2020.
On April 30, 2019, we completed the acquisition of MedecinDirect. The purchase price was $11.2 million cash with
additional potential earnout consideration. We also made a $5.0 million minority investment in Vida Health on June 19, 2019.
Cash Provided by Operating Activities
For the nine months ended September 30, 2020, cash provided by operating activities was $61.4 million compared to a
use of cash of $11.7 million for the prior year period. The improvement in cash flows resulted primarily from higher earnings
excluding non-cash items, as noted by the increase in EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA, as the Company has enhanced operating
leverage on its cash expenses while its revenues increased. Additionally, net working capital increased compared to the prior year
period.
For the nine months ended September 30, 2019, cash provided by operating activities was $11.7 million. The positive
cash flows resulted primarily from our net loss of $79.8 million, changes in deferred income tax of $10.3 million and adjusted for
the effect of net changes in working capital and other balance sheet accounts resulting in cash outflows of approximately
$1.4 million. These are fully offset by depreciation and amortization of $33.8 million,
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allowance for doubtful accounts of $1.7 million, stock-based compensation of $48.3 million and accretion of interest of $19.4
million.
Cash (Used in) Provided by Investing Activities
Cash used in investing activities was $177.1 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2020. Cash used in
investing activities consisted of the InTouch acquisiton of $159.7 million, purchases of property and equipment totaling $2.9
million and investments in internally developed capitalized software of $14.5 million.
Cash provided by investing activities was $15.5 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2019. Cash provided
by investing activities consisted of maturities of short-term marketable securities of $39.2 million, net of sales, offset by the
purchases of property and equipment totaling $2.8 million, investments in internally developed capitalized software of $4.7
million, investment in securities of $5.0 million and acquisition of businesses of $11.2 million
Cash Provided by Financing Activities
Cash provided by financing activities for the nine months ended September 30, 2020 was $788.7 million. Cash provided
by financing activities consisted of $975.9 million of net cash proceeds from the issuance of the 2027 Notes, $40.6 million of
proceeds from the exercise of employee stock options, $2.5 million of proceeds from employee stock purchase plan, $1.9 million
of proceeds from advances from financing companies and $0.3 million of timing associated with net cash proceeds for tax
withholding for stock-based compensation, offset by $228.2 million of cash used in the repurchased of 2022 Notes and $4.4
million from a net change in payments from customers against advances from financing companies.
Cash provided by financing activities for the nine months ended September 30, 2019 was $25.1 million. Cash provided
by financing activities consisted of $24.8 million of proceeds from the exercise of employee stock options, $1.9 million of
proceeds from employee stock purchase plan, offset by payment of $1.6 million for tax withholding for options exercised.
Looking Forward
At September 30, 2020, the Company’s cash and short-term investments were $1,190.4 million. For the nine months
ended September 30, 2020, we have continued to experience positive Adjusted EBITDA and for the full year 2020 we anticipate
positive Adjusted EBITDA as well as positive free cash flow.
We believe that our existing cash and cash equivalents and short-term marketable securities will be sufficient to meet
our working capital and capital expenditure needs for at least the next 12 months. Our future capital requirements will depend on
many factors including our growth rate, contract renewal activity, number of visits, the timing and extent of spending to support
product development efforts, our expansion of sales and marketing activities, the introduction of new and enhanced service
offerings and the continuing market acceptance of telehealth. We may in the future enter into arrangements to acquire or invest in
complementary businesses, services and technologies and intellectual property rights. We may be required to seek additional
equity or debt financing. In the event that additional financing is required from outside sources, we may not be able to raise it on
terms acceptable to us or at all. If we are unable to raise additional capital when desired, our business, financial condition and
results of operations would be adversely affected.
Shelf Registration Statements
We filed an automatically effective shelf registration statement on Form S-3 under the Securities Act on November 28,
2017 (the “2017 Shelf”). Under the 2017 Shelf at the time of effectiveness, we had the ability to raise up to $175 million by
selling common stock in addition to 1,200,000 shares of common stock eligible for resale by certain shareholders. Following an
offering in December 2017 there remained under the 2017 Shelf the ability to raise up to approximately $32 million by selling
common stock in addition to 370,000 shares of common stock eligible for resale by certain existing shareholders.
On July 23, 2018, we filed an automatically effective universal shelf registration statement on Form S-3 under the
Securities Act (the “2018 Shelf”). The 2018 Shelf registers the offering of securities, including common stock, preferred stock
and debt securities, that we may issue from time to time in amounts to be determined, as well as the issuance of common stock by
selling stockholders. Issuances of securities under the 2018 Shelf require the filing of a
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prospectus supplement identifying the amount and terms of the securities to be issued. Our ability to issue securities is subject to
market conditions and other factors impacting our borrowing capacity.
On November 5, 2020, we filed an automatically effective shelf registration statement on Form S-3 under the Securities
Act (the “2020 Shelf”). The 2020 Shelf registers 931 shares of common stock issuable upon the exercise of certain stock options
granted under the Livongo Health, Inc. Amended and Restated 2014 Stock Incentive Plan (the “2014 Livongo Plan”) that are
outstanding and held by eligible former employees of Livongo. In connection with the Livongo merger, we assumed the
obligations under the 2014 Livongo Plan.
Indebtedness
On May 19, 2020, we issued, at par value, $1,000.0 million aggregate principal amount of 1.25% convertible senior
notes due 2027. The 2027 Notes bear cash interest at a rate of 1.25% per year, payable semi-annually in arrears on June 1 and
December 1 of each year. The 2027 Notes will mature on June 1, 2027. The net proceeds to us from the offering were $975.9
million after deducting offering costs of approximately $24.1 million.
On May 8, 2018, we issued, at par value, $287.5 million aggregate principal amount of 1.375% convertible senior notes
due 2025. The 2025 Notes bear cash interest at a rate of 1.375% per year, payable semi-annually in arrears on May 15 and
November 15 of each year. The 2025 Notes will mature on May 15, 2025. The net proceeds to us from the offering were $279.1
million after deducting offering costs of approximately $8.4 million.
In June 2017, we issued, at par value, $275 million aggregate principal amount of 3% convertible senior notes due 2022.
The 2022 Notes bear cash interest at a rate of 3% per year, payable semi-annually in arrears on June 15 and December 15 of each
year. The 2022 Notes will mature on December 15, 2022. The net proceeds to us from the offering were $263.7 million after
deducting offering costs of approximately $11.3 million.
On May 14, 2020, the Company entered into privately negotiated agreements with certain holders of 2022 Notes to
exchange 2022 Notes for shares of the Company’s common stock, together with cash, in private placement transactions pursuant
to Section 4(a)(2) of the Securities Act. The closing of the Exchange Transactions occurred on May 19, 2020. In exchange for
approximately $228.2 million aggregate principal amount of 2022 Notes, the Company paid approximately $231.1 million in
cash (including accrued and unpaid interest and cash paid in lieu of fractional shares), together with an aggregate of
approximately 3.9 million shares of its common stock. As a result of the Exchange Transactions, the Company recorded a charge
associated with the loss on extinguishment of debt of $7.7 million during the quarter ended September 30, 2020 .
Approximately $46.8 million aggregate principal amount of the 2022 Notes remains outstanding as of September 30,
2020.
The 2027, 2025 and 2022 Notes are senior unsecured obligations of ours and rank senior in right of payment to our
indebtedness that is expressly subordinated in right of payment to the 2022 Notes; equal in right of payment to our liabilities that
is not so subordinated; effectively junior in right of payment to any of our secured indebtedness to the extent of the value of the
assets securing such indebtedness; and structurally junior to all indebtedness and other liabilities incurred by our subsidiaries.
See Note 11, “Convertible Senior Notes” of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements of the Quarterly Report
on Form 10-Q for additional information on the 2027, 2025 and 2022 Notes.
We were in compliance with all debt covenants at September 30, 2020 and December 31, 2019.
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Contractual Obligations and Commitments
The following summarizes our contractual obligations as of September 30, 2020:

Total

Operating leases
Debt obligations under the Convertible Notes
Interest associated with the Convertible Notes
Total

$

44,465
1,324,322
107,240
$ 1,476,027

Payment Due by Period
Less than
1 to 3
4 to 5
1 Year
Years
Years

$

2,499
0
17,719
$ 20,218

$ 17,970
46,765
33,669
$ 98,404

$
$

15,488
277,557
32,633
325,678

More than
5 Years

$
$

8,508
1,000,000
23,219
1,031,727

Our existing office and hosting co-location facilities lease agreements provide us with the option to renew and generally
provide for rental payments on a graduated basis. Our future operating lease obligations would change if we entered into
additional operating lease agreements as we expand our operations and if we exercised the office and hosting co-location
facilities lease options. The contractual commitment amounts in the table above are associated with agreements that are
enforceable and legally binding and that specify all significant terms, including fixed or minimum services to be used, fixed,
minimum or variable price provisions and the approximate timing of the transaction. Obligations under contracts that we can
cancel without a significant penalty are not included in the table above.
Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
During the periods presented, we did not have, nor do we currently have, any relationships with unconsolidated entities
or financial partnerships, such as entities often referred to as structured finance or special purpose entities, which would have
been established for the purpose of facilitating off-balance sheet arrangements or other contractually narrow or limited purposes.
We are therefore not exposed to the financing, liquidity, market or credit risk that could arise if we had engaged in those types of
relationships.
Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk
Interest Rate Risk and Foreign Exchange Risk
We do not have any floating rate debt as of September 30, 2020. Cash equivalents that are subject to interest rate
volatility represent our principal market risk. We do not expect cash flows to be affected to any significant degree by a sudden
change in market interest rates.
We operate our business primarily within the United States and currently execute more than 86% of our transactions in
U.S. dollars. We have not utilized hedging strategies with respect to such foreign exchange exposure. This limited foreign
currency translation risk is not expected to have a material impact on our consolidated financial statements.
Concentrations of Risk and Significant Clients
Our financial instruments that are exposed to concentrations of credit risk consist primarily of cash and cash equivalents,
short-term marketable securities and accounts receivable. Although we deposit our cash with multiple financial institutions in
U.S. and in foreign countries, our deposits, at times, may exceed federally insured limits. Our short-term marketable securities are
comprised of a portfolio of diverse high credit rating instruments with maturity durations of one year or less.
No Client represented over 10% of revenues for the quarters ended September 30, 2020 and 2019.
No Client represented over 10% of accounts receivable at September 30, 2020 and December 31, 2019.
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Item 4. Controls and Procedures
Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting
In designing and evaluating our disclosure controls and procedures, management recognizes that any controls and
procedures, no matter how well designed and operated, can provide only reasonable assurance of achieving the desired control
objectives and management necessarily applies its judgment in evaluating the cost-benefit relationship of possible controls and
procedures.
Our management, with the participation of our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, evaluated, as of the
end of the period covered by this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”)). Based
on that evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures
were effective at the reasonable assurance level as of September 30, 2020.
No changes in our internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the
Exchange Act) occurred during the fiscal quarter ended September 30, 2020 that have materially affected, or are reasonably
likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.
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PART II - OTHER INFORMATION
Item 1. Legal Proceedings
The Company is subject to legal proceedings, claims and litigation arising in the ordinary course of its business. At
September 30, 2020, the Company is not aware of any pending or threatened litigation that would have a material adverse effect
on its business, results of operations, cash flows or financial condition should such litigation be resolved unfavorably.
On December 12, 2018, a purported securities class action complaint (Reiner v. Teladoc Health, Inc., et.al.) was filed in
the United States District Court for the Southern District of New York (the “SDNY”) against the Company and certain of the
Company’s officers and a former officer. The complaint is brought on behalf of a purported class consisting of all persons or
entities who purchased or otherwise acquired shares of the Company’s common stock during the period March 3, 2016 through
December 5, 2018. The complaint asserts violations of Sections 10(b) and 20(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 based on
allegedly false or misleading statements and omissions with respect to, among other things, the alleged misconduct of one of the
Company’s previous Executive Officers. The complaint seeks certification as a class action and unspecified compensatory
damages plus interest and attorneys’ fees. The Company believes that the claims against the Company and its officers are without
merit, and the Company and its named officers intend to defend the Company vigorously, including filing a motion to dismiss the
complaint.
In addition, on June 21, 2019, a stockholder derivative lawsuit (Kreutter v. Gorevic, et al.) was filed in the SDNY
against certain current and former directors and officers of the Company. The derivative lawsuit alleges that the named directors
and officers breached their fiduciary duties to the Company in connection with factual assertions substantially similar to those in
the purported securities class action complaint described above. The Company believes that the claims set forth in this
stockholder derivative lawsuit are without merit.
On May 14, 2018, a purported class action complaint (Thomas v. Best Doctors, Inc.) was filed in the United States
District Court for the District of Massachusetts against the Company’s wholly owned subsidiary, Best Doctors, Inc. The
complaint alleges that on or about May 16, 2017, Best Doctors violated the U.S. Telephone Consumer Protection Act (the
“TCPA”) by sending unsolicited facsimiles to plaintiff and certain other recipients without the recipients’ prior express invitation
or permission. The lawsuit seeks statutory damages for each violation, subject to trebling under the TCPA, and injunctive relief.
The Company will vigorously defend the lawsuit and any potential loss is currently deemed to be immaterial.
Several complaints have been filed to date in connection with the merger between Livongo Health Inc. (“Livongo”) and
the Company. Three purported class action complaints were filed under the captions: Kent v. Livongo Health, Inc., et al., Case
No. 1:20-cv-01213 (D. Del.); Raheja v. Livongo Health, Inc., et al., Case No. 5:20-cv-06406 (N.D. Cal.); and Hart v. Livongo
Health, Inc., et al., Case No. 1:20-cv-01222 (D. Del.). Seven additional complaints were filed by purported stockholders of
Livongo under the captions: Kubus v. Livongo Health, Inc., et al., Case No. 1:20-cv-07579 (S.D.N.Y.); Jones v. Livongo Health,
Inc., et al., Case No. 1:20-cv-04362 (E.D.N.Y.); Anthony v. Livongo Health, Inc., et al., Case No. 1:20-cv-07706 (S.D.N.Y.);
Banner v. Livongo Health, Inc., et al., Case No. 5:20-cv-06758 (N.D. Cal.); Vea v. Livongo Health, Inc., et al., Case No. 1:20-cv08230 (S.D.N.Y.); Ormesher v. Livongo Health Inc., et al., 5:20-cv-07105 (N.D. Cal.); and O’Connor v. Livongo Health Inc., et
al., Case No. 5:20-cv-07281 (N.D. Cal.) (collectively with the purported class action complaints, the “Merger Litigations”). As of
November 5, 2020, the Raheja, Kubus, and Banner complaints have been voluntarily dismissed with prejudice
The Merger Litigations generally name as defendants Livongo and the members of its board of directors. The Kent
complaint, Raheja complaint, and Hart complaint also assert claims against the Company and Tempranillo Merger Sub, Inc., a
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company. The Merger Litigations generally allege that the registration statement and/or the joint
proxy statement/prospectus filed in connection with the merger between Livongo and the Company omitted material information
in violation of Sections 14(a) and 20(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, rendering the statements false and misleading.
The Raheja complaint and the Kubus complaint also alleged that certain defendants breached their fiduciary duties in connection
with the merger. The Merger Litigations seek, among other things, an order enjoining the merger; rescinding the merger, to the
extent it closes, and recovering damages; and awarding costs, including attorneys’ fees and expenses. The Company believes that
the claims asserted are wholly without merit.
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Item 1A. Risk Factors
Other than the risk factor set forth below, there have been no material changes to the risk factors previously disclosed in
our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2019. For a discussion of potential risks and uncertainties
related to our Company see the information in Part I, Item 1A ("Risk Factors") of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 2019 and our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended March 31, 2020.
In addition to the other information set forth in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, you should carefully consider the
factors discussed in the “Special Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements” section in Part I, Item 2, of this Quarterly Report
on Form 10-Q.
We may have difficulty integrating the Livongo business, and the anticipated synergies and other benefits of the combined
company may not be realized.
On October 30, 2020 we completed the merger with Livongo. For more information, see Note 16, “Subsequent Event”
of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q. The ultimate success of our recent
merger with Livongo will depend in large part on the success of the management of the newly combined company in integrating
the operations, strategies, technologies and personnel of the two companies. We may fail to realize some or all of the anticipated
benefits of the merger if the integration process takes longer than expected or is more costly than expected. Our failure to meet
the challenges involved in successfully integrating the operations of the two companies or to otherwise realize any of the
anticipated benefits of the merger, including additional cost savings and synergies, could impair our operations. In addition, the
overall integration of Livongo post-merger will continue to be a time-consuming and expensive process that, without proper
planning and effective and timely implementation, could significantly disrupt our business.
Potential difficulties we may encounter in the integration process include the following:
●

the integration of management teams, strategies, technologies and operations, products and services;

●

the disruption of ongoing businesses and distraction of management from ongoing business concerns;

●

the retention of and possible decrease in business from the existing customers of both companies;

●

the creation of uniform standards, controls, procedures, policies and information systems;

●

the reduction of the costs associated with each company’s operations;

●

the integration of corporate cultures and maintenance of employee morale;

●

the retention of key employees; and

●

potential unknown liabilities associated with the merger.

The initial anticipated cost savings, synergies and other benefits of the merger assume a successful integration of the
companies and are based on projections and other assumptions, which are inherently uncertain. Even if integration is successful,
anticipated cost savings, synergies and other benefits may not be achieved.
Certain business uncertainties arising from the merger with Livongo could adversely affect our business and operations.
Uncertainties about the effect of the merger with Livongo on employees, clients, members, providers, experts and other
persons with whom we have a business relationship may have an adverse effect on us. During times of significant change and
uncertainty such as the period following the merger, clients, members, providers, experts and other persons with whom we have a
business relationship may delay or defer business decisions, decide to terminate, modify or renegotiate their relationships with us,
or take other actions as a result of the merger that could negatively affect our revenues, earnings and cash flows, as well as the
market price of our securities. Our ability to raise additional capital through the debt markets, and the associated borrowing costs,
may also be negatively impacted. Any such effects could limit our ability to achieve the anticipated benefits of the merger with
Livongo. These uncertainties about the
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effect of the merger may also impair our ability to attract, retain and motivate key personnel. Employee retention may be
challenging, as certain employees may experience uncertainty about their future roles or may be dissatisfied with their new roles.
If key employees depart, our business could be materially harmed. If key employees join a competitor or form a new competitor,
existing and potential clients could choose to use the products or services of that competitor instead of our products or services.
The COVID-19 pandemic could cause disruptions and adversely impact our business and operations.
In March 2020, the World Health Organization declared COVID-19 a global pandemic. This contagious outbreak,
which has continued to spread, and the related adverse public health developments, including orders to shelter-in-place, travel
restrictions and mandated business closures, have adversely affected workforces, organizations, customers, economies and
financial markets globally, leading to an economic downturn and increased market volatility. It has also disrupted the normal
operations of many businesses, including ours.
This outbreak, as well as intensified measures undertaken to contain the spread of COVID-19, could cause disruptions
and severely impact our business, including, but not limited to:
●

causing one or more of our Clients to file for bankruptcy protection or shut down;

●

reducing Client and Member subscription fees generated, as well as visit fees by other individuals, as a result
of funding constraints related to loss of revenue or employment;

●

negatively impacting collections of accounts receivable;

●

negatively impacting our ability to facilitate the provision of our services to Clients and other consumers; and

●

harming our business, results of operations and financial condition.

We cannot predict with any certainty whether and to what degree the disruption caused by the COVID-19 pandemic and
reactions thereto will continue, and expect to face difficulty accurately predicting our internal financial forecasts.
Our continued access to sources of liquidity also depend on multiple factors, including global economic conditions, the
condition of global financial markets, the availability of sufficient amounts of financing and our operating performance. A $10
million Revolving Credit Facility was terminated pursuant to its terms effective July 14, 2020. There is no guarantee that
additional debt financing will be available in the future to fund our obligations, or that it will be available on commercially
reasonable terms, in which case we may need to seek other sources of funding. In addition, the terms of the agreements governing
our current indebtedness include, and any future debt agreements could include, restrictive covenants, which could restrict our
business operations.
The outbreak also presents challenges as our entire workforce is currently working remotely and shifting to assisting
new and existing Clients, Members and other consumers, who are also generally working remotely.
It is not possible for us to accurately predict the duration or magnitude of the adverse results of the outbreak and its
effects on our business, results of operations or financial condition at this time, but such effects may be material. The COVID-19
pandemic may also have the effect of heightening many of the other risks identified in the “Risk Factors” section of our Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2019, such as those relating to our indebtedness, our need to generate
sufficient cash flows to service our indebtedness and our ability to comply with the covenants contained in the agreements that
govern our indebtedness.
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Item 6. Exhibits
Exhibit
Index
Exhibit
Number

Exhibit Description

Form

Incorporated by Reference
Filing
File No.
Exhibit
Date

Filed
Herewith

2.1

Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated January 11,
2020, by and among Teladoc Health, Inc., Jonata Sub
One, Inc., Jonata Sub Two, Inc., InTouch
Technologies, Inc. and Fortis Advisors LLC, as equity
holder representative

8-K

00137477

2.1

1/13/20

2.2

Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of August 5,
2020, by and among Teladoc Health, Inc., Tempranillo
Merger Sub, Inc. and Livongo Health, Inc.

8-K

00137477

2.1

8/6/20

3.1

Sixth Amended and Restated Certificate of
Incorporation of Teladoc, Inc.

8-K

00137477

3.1

5/31/17

3.2

Certificate of Amendment to the Sixth Amended and
Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Teladoc, Inc.

8-K

00137477

3.1

6/1/18

3.3

Second Certificate of Amendment to the Sixth
Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of
Teladoc, Inc.

8-K

00137477

3.1

8/10/18

3.4

Certificate of Amendment to the Sixth Amended and
Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Teladoc
Health, Inc.

8-K

00137477

3.1

10/30/20

3.5

Fourth Amended and Restated Bylaws of Teladoc
Health, Inc.

8-K

00137477

3.1

2/25/19

10.1

Voting Agreement, dated as of August 5, 2020, by and
among Teladoc Health, Inc., Tempranillo Merger Sub,
Inc., General Catalyst Group VI, L.P., General Catalyst
Group VIII, L.P., General Catalyst Group VIII
Supplemental, L.P., GC Venture LH Manager, LLC,
Kinnevik Internet Lux S.a.r.l., 7Wire Ventures LLC,
Glen Tullman and Lee Shapiro.

8-K

00137477

10.1

8/6/20

31.1

Chief Executive Officer—Certification pursuant to
Rule 13a-14(a) or Rule 15d-14(a) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as adopted pursuant to
Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

*

31.2

Chief Financial Officer—Certification pursuant to
Rule 13a-14(a) or Rule 15d-14(a) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as adopted pursuant to
Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

*
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32.1

Chief Executive Officer—Certification pursuant to
Rule13a-14(b) or Rule 15d-14(b) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 and 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as
adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act of 2002.

**

32.2

Chief Financial Officer—Certification pursuant to
Rule 13a-14(b) or Rule 15d-14(b) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 and 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as
adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act of 2002.

**

101.INS

XBRL Instance Document - the instance document
does not appear in the Interactive Data File because its
XBRL tags are embedded within the
Inline XBRL document.

*

101.SCH XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document.

*

101.CAL XBRL Taxonomy Calculation Linkbase Document.

*

101.DEF XBRL Definition Linkbase Document.

*

101.LAB XBRL Taxonomy Label Linkbase Document.

*

101.PRE

*

104

XBRL Taxonomy Presentation Linkbase Document.
Cover Page Interactive Data File – The cover page
interactive data file does not appear in the Interactive
Data File because its XBRL tags are embedded within
the Inline XBRL document

* Filed herewith.
** Furnished herewith.
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Signatures
Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its
behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.
TELADOC HEALTH, INC.
Date: November 6, 2020

By:
Name:
Title:

/s/ JASON GOREVIC
Jason Gorevic
Chief Executive Officer

Date: November 6, 2020

By:
Name:
Title:

/s/ MALA MURTHY
Mala Murthy
Chief Financial Officer
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Exhibit 31.1
Certification
I, Jason Gorevic, certify that:
1.

I have reviewed this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Teladoc Health, Inc. for the period ended September 30, 2020;

2.

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3.

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4.

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules
13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:
(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to
us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;
(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;
(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such
evaluation; and
(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5.

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent
functions):
(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and
(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: November 6, 2020
/s/ JASON GOREVIC
Jason Gorevic
Chief Executive Officer

Exhibit 31.2
Certification
I, Mala Murthy, certify that:
1.

I have reviewed this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Teladoc Health, Inc. for the period ended September 30, 2020;

2.

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3.

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4.

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules
13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:
(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to
us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;
(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;
(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such
evaluation; and
(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5.

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent
functions):
(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and
(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: November 6, 2020
/s/ MALA MURTHY
Mala Murthy
Chief Financial Officer

Exhibit 32.1
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANESOXLEY ACT OF 2002
In connection with the Quarterly Report of Teladoc Health, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-Q for the period ended September 30,
2020 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, Jason Gorevic, Chief Executive Officer of the
Company, certify, to my knowledge, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002, that:
1.

The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or Section 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended; and

2.

The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the
Company.

Date: November 6, 2020
/s/ JASON GOREVIC
Jason Gorevic
Chief Executive Officer

Exhibit 32.2
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANESOXLEY ACT OF 2002
In connection with the Quarterly Report of Teladoc Health, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-Q for the period ended September 30,
2020 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, Mala Murthy, Chief Financial Officer of the
Company, certify, to my knowledge, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002, that:
1.

The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or Section 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended; and

2.

The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the
Company.

Date: November 6, 2020
/s/ MALA MURTHY
Mala Murthy
Chief Financial Officer

